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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Overall Performance

The Group’s business strategy has been to engage in a diversified portfolio of business
activities that are largely synergistic with one another, in order to generate greater value
and opportunities. Therefore, although we report according to business segments, our
businesses are not all operated as independent units, but instead they may work closely
together to maximise business opportunities, especially financial/business services,
technology/media business, and food & beverage. For example, some of our businesses
call for synergistic cross-segment and inter-disciplinary management and operational
expertise, resulting in overlap of business contacts and customers amongst business
segments.

During the year under review, the Group successfully generated increased revenue of
approximately HK$23.5 million (2017: approximately HK$12.8 million), with profit for the
year of approximately HK$38.8 million (2017: loss of approximately HK$4.8 million). In
addition to revenue, the Group also recorded gross proceeds from the sale of securities of
approximately HK$6.8 million (2017: approximately HK$2.4 million).

The profit for the year under review as compared with the loss during the previous year
was mainly due to our successful improvement in performance, resulting in increase in
revenue to approximately HK$23.5 million (2017: approximately HK$12.8 million), for
example, in our food & beverage and technology & media businesses, as well as increase
in fair value of our investment properties of approximately HK$35.8 million (2017:
approximately HK$6.6 million).

Our Property business is engaged in acquiring, managing and operating undervalued
properties, including (i) commercial properties (retail and offices), especially in Kowloon
East CBD, in line with the government’s CBD 2.0 policy to transform Kowloon East, (ii)
residential properties, especially at prime locations, and (iii) carpark properties, especially
at locations with a low carpark density. These properties are located at regional locations
that we believe are considered to be higher quality for property demand, primarily in
Hong Kong, but also in the PRC and Macau. These properties are acquired, managed
and operated for both value gain and rental income strategies. As a result, (a) income
from our properties can be from both disposal proceeds as well as from rental receipts,
and (b) fair value gains from our properties are recorded as profit. We believe that this
two-pronged approach of value gain and rental income optimizes value creation for our
shareholders.

Our Technology & Media business is focused on providing media, fintech and
entertainment and related technology services and products. We provide full one-
stop service to clients to analyse, design, develop, operate and maintain integrated
e-commerce and other online commercial platforms and products, for different business
models and industries. Following our previous investment phase in product development
and related business development, in particular in relation to multi-language, multi-
currency fintech systems, that we believe would be of considerable global demand
following the breakthrough of advanced fintech technologies, we have now emerged to
profit in our Technology & Media business.

Our Food & Beverage business focuses on (i) casual food & beverage businesses and
related businesses, that are operated from relatively smaller size locations instead of
large floor-area restaurants, including our minority equity interest in a food & beverage
operator in Hong Kong to which also we contribute our experience in operations and
management, (i) sourcing and distributorship of food & beverage products, including
having successfully secured a distributorship from a significant producer of chilled
seafood in the PRC, and (iii) providing management services to food & beverage clients.
Our Securities business operates by investing in a diversified portfolio of securities that
are listed on recognized stock exchanges with a potential for earnings growth and capital
appreciation. Our strategy is to generate and preserve shareholder value, and we do so by
adopting a prudent investment policy to invest in securities that have long-term growth
potential. This way, we have been continuing to achieve risk-adjusted returns under
relatively volatile or uncertain conditions in the global capital markets.

Our Financial Services business provides financial services, as well as business/
management related services, including clients with cross-border expansion or activities
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Korea.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Financial Services

During the vyear, revenue from our financial services business was approximately
HK$3.1 million (2017: approximately HK$2.4 million), resulting in a segment gain of
approximately HK$2.4 million (2017: approximately HK$1.6 million).

Securities

Our securities business recorded a net realised and unrealised gain on trading of
securities investment and dividend income in equity investments in aggregate of
approximately HK$2.7 million (2017: gain of approximately HK$5.6 million), which
contributed a gain for our securities segment of approximately HK$2.7 million (2017:
gain of approximately HK$5.6 million) for the year ended 30 April 2018.

Property

The revenue of the Group’s property business segment was approximately of HK$3.9
million (2017: approximately HK$4.6 million). The business segment contributed a profit
of approximately HK$39.0 million (2017: approximately HK$10.4 million) to the Group.
Excluding the gain on unrealised fair value, the recurring profit of the property business
segment would have been approximately HK$3.2 million (2017: approximately HK$3.8
million).

Technology & Media

During the year, revenue from our technology & media business was approximately
HK$9.5 million (2017: approximately HK$nil), resulting in a segment gain of
approximately HK$1.6 million (2017: loss of approximately HK$5.2 million).

Food & Beverage

During the year, revenue from our food & beverage business was approximately
HK$4.3 million (2017: approximately HK$0.2 million), resulting in a segment gain of
approximately HK$2.4 million (2017: approximately HK$0.1 million).

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group is exposed to the risk of negative, volatile or of uncertain developments,
including but not limited to negative, volatile or uncertain developments in the global,
regional and local economies, in the financial and property markets, and in the changes
in patterns of consumption. These developments might reduce revenue or result in
reduced valuations of the Group’s investment properties or in the Group being unable
to meet its strategic objectives or in negative effect to its financial condition, results
of operations and businesses. The Company will continue to adopt prudent financial
policies to cope with the impact of uncertain factors.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group maintained cash and bank balances as at 30 April 2018 amounting to
approximately HK$34.6 million (2017: approximately HK$36.7 million). The Group'’s
current ratio as at 30 April 2018 was 3.7 (2017: 3.5). The total equity of the Group

amounted to approximately HK$383.8 million (2017: approximately HK$341.8 million) as
at 30 April 2018.

Gearing

The gearing ratio, as a ratio of bank borrowings to total equity, was 0.07 as at 30 April
2018 (2017: 0.09).
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Exchange Rate Exposure

The Group’s assets, liabilities and cash flow from operations are mainly denominated in
Renminbi, United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars. The Group currently does not
have any related foreign exchange hedges, however the Company monitors its foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedges should the need arise.

Treasury Policies

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated resources and
bank borrowings. The interest rates of borrowing, if applicable, are generally charged by
reference to prevailing market rates.

Commitments
The Group had no capital commitments during the year (2017: nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

We believe that we are well-positioned for continued future growth, notwithstanding the
uncertainties presented in the global and local business environment, including potential
trade wars. We believe that in no small part due to the way that we operate synergistic
cross-segment businesses, with management and operational staff who have significant
experience in inter-disciplinary business management and operations, especially in cross-
border businesses.

In particular, continuing with our successful generation of revenue and profit from our
properties, we intend to continue to manage and operate a portfolio of properties that
present both value gain and also rental income, especially commercial properties in
high demand areas like Kowloon East CBD which is in line with government policy to
transform and create Hong Kong’s CBD 2.0. And with increasing use of technology and
decentralization in occupier strategy, we believe that Kowloon East CBD is well-equipped
to grow and outperform many other emerging commercial submarkets and establish
itself as a new CBD for Hong Kong. We will continue to closely monitor the market and
determine the optimum times for reducing our weighting in residential properties and
increasing our weighting in Kowloon East CBD commercial properties. We also seek to
maintain and reinforce our value by recognising the importance of maintaining long-
term good relationships with our core stakeholders, for example, tenants, property agents
and professional bodies.

We also seek to strive to continue the growth that we have already achieved as we have
emerged from a temporary period of investment phase in technology & media. We have
believed that fintech will be the big breakthrough for businesses across many industries.
Our synergistic mode of operation and management has been successful in generating
clients and business from cross-disciplinary business development efforts, for example,
fintech-related services for non-financial sector clients. With increased client demand in
advancement of fintech and blockchain technologies, as well as market recognition of
our Group’s products in fintech, we are now seeing significantly increased demand for
our fintech services and products, potentially enhancing our revenue and profit, and we
are optimistic that we stand in a good position to secure increased business from clients
in this sector in the coming year, growing from the successful turnaround that we have
already achieved in the past year.

And in food & beverage, we believe that our current operations and management
expertise will be a strong basis to continue the growth that we have seen in the past
year by potentially securing increased business through expansion of our product lines,
including potentially seeking suitable food & beverage operations for acquisition or
collaboration, expansion of our sourcing and distributorship business, and growth of our
business/management services for food & beverage companies synergistically with our
financial services division. We also will continue to enhance our e-commerce capabilities,
synergistically with our technology & media division. In addition, with our growing
business network in Korea, we have already secured the distributorship of a significant
PRC producer of seafood that seeks to expand into the Korea market, and we intend to
expand our product lines to other food & beverage products as well as potentially similar
businesses, including lifestyle products and services, thus creating new revenue streams
for our Group.
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Overall, we are excited by our business development in Hong Kong and overseas and
will continue to expand in our interdisciplinary and synergistic way. As we have now
successfully executed our turnaround to profit, we look ahead to continued growth in
our directions of strength, while placing tremendous effort on diversifying our Group’s
existing business portfolio, all the while being mindful of achieving sustainable growth.
This will call for our Group’s competitive edges to be exhibited to grasp emerging
opportunities, and thereby access new revenue streams, increase existing revenue
streams, and deliver greater returns for our shareholders.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 30 April 2018, the Group had 25 (2017: 14) employees in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group has not experienced any significant problems with its employees or
disruptions due to labour disputes nor has it experienced difficulties in the recruitment
and retention of experienced staff. The Group remunerates its employees based on
industry practices. Its staff benefits, welfare, share options and statutory contributions, if
any, are made in accordance with individual performance and prevailing labour laws of
its operating entities.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 July 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of the
investment in Partners K&K Limited to an independent third party, which was classified
as an available-for-sale investment, at a consideration of US$1,000,000.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS
EEET

Executive Directors

Vong Tat leong David, aged 56, has been a director of the Company since 2005 and
serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr Vong has acquired and run
public companies, and made and advised on cross-border financial transactions and
mergers and acquisitions, involving capital markets and private equity, for over 25 years.
He was formerly Vice Chairman of the board of directors of CITIC 21CN Company Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange, from 2003-2004. Before that, he was director
and Deputy Chief Executive of 1100 Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
since he co-founded the 1100 Group in 2000 with an international consortium whose key
participants included management and leading institutional investors. Prior to that, he
was Chief Executive at Pollon Infrastructure Corporation, an infrastructure investment
holding company focused on power and telecom assets in the PRC, since 1997. Mr Vong is a
graduate of Yale Law School and The London School of Economics and Political Science.

Xu Siping, aged 60, has been a director of the Company since 2005 and held a series
of senior policy positions for about 18 years at the PRCs State Economic and Trade
Commission and the National Development and Reform Commission (formerly the State
Planning Commission), from 1983-2000, before retiring from public service in the central
government. Mr Xu is a graduate of Dalian University of Technology.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Fung Ka Keung David, aged 55, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 2005. He is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. Mr Fung graduated from Leicester University.

Lam Lee G., aged 59, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
since 2005. He holds a BSc in sciences and mathematics, an MSc in systems science and
an MBA from the University of Ottawa in Canada, a post-graduate diploma in public
administration from Carleton University in Canada, a post-graduate diploma in English
and Hong Kong Law and an LLB (Hons) in law from Manchester Metropolitan University
in the UK, a LLM in law from the University of Wolverhampton in the UK, a PCLL in law
from the City University of Hong Kong, a Certificate in Professional Accountancy from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong SCS, an MPA and a PhD from the University of Hong Kong.
A former member of the Hong Kong Bar, Dr. Lam is a Solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong, an Honorary Fellow of CPA Australia, a Fellow of CMA Australia, and an Honorary
Fellow of the University of Hong Kong School of Professional and Continuing Education.

Dr Lam has international experience in general management, strategy consulting, corporate
governance, direct investment, investment banking and fund management across the
telecommunications/media/technology (TMT), consumer/healthcare, infrastructure/real
estates, energy/resources and financial services sectors. He is Non-Executive Chairman
— Hong Kong and ASEAN Region and Chief Adviser to Macquarie Infrastructure and Real
Assets Asia. Active in community service in China and Hong Kong and in international
affairs, Dr. Lam served as a Part-time Member of the Central Policy Unit of the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for two terms, a Member of the Legal
Aid Services Council, a Member of the New Business Committee of the Financial Services
Development Council (FSDC), a Member of the Derivatives Market Consultative Panel of
Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) and a Member of the General Council
and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies.
He is currently Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited, a
member of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government's Committee on
Innovation, Technology and Re-Industrialization, the Council on Professional Conduct in
Education (CPC), Convenor of the Panel of Advisors on Building Management Disputes
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region Government Home Affairs Department,
President of the United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific
(UN ESCAP) Sustainable Business Network (ESBN) Executive Council and Chairman of its Task
Force on Banking and Finance, Vice Chairman of the United Nations Economic and Social
Commission for Asia and the Pacific (UNESCAP) Business Advisory Council and Chairman
of its Task Force on Banking and Finance, Chairman of the Permanent Commission on
Economic and Financial Issues of World Union of Small and Medium Enterprises (WUSME),
Honorary Chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA Australia, a Member of the Jilin Province
Committee (and formerly a Specially-invited Member of the Zhejiang Province Committee)
of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference (CPPCC), a Vice Chairman of
Liaoning Chinese Overseas Friendship Association, a Member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Arbitrators, an Accredited Mediator of the Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution (CEDR),
a Member of the Court of the City University of Hong Kong, a Board Member of the
Australian Chamber of Commerce in Hong Kong and Macau, a Founding Board Member
and the Honorary Treasurer of the Hong Kong-Vietnam Chamber of Commerce, a Member
of the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council, a Founding Member of the Hong Kong-Korea
Business Council, a Vice President of the Hong Kong Real Property Federation, Chairman
of Monte Jade Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong and President of Hong
Kong-ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation. He is Chairman of the Company's Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Company's Nomination
Committee.

Wong Man Ngar Edna, aged 52, has been an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company since 2005, is Senior Consultant at UBM Asia, a director of Xact Limited, and was
formerly Regional Marketing Manager at American Express, and Management Consultant at
The Mitchell Madison Group in New York. She is a graduate of Columbia Business School
and is a member of the Company’s Audit Committee.
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The directors have pleasure to present their report and the audited financial statements
of Vongroup Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
30 April 2018.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities
of the Group comprise financial services businesses, securities businesses, property
businesses, technology & media businesses and food & beverage businesses.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group, an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators, particulars of important events
affecting the Group during the year, and an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis set out on
pages 4 to 7 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities for the year
ended 30 April 2018 is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 30 April 2018 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 26 of this annual
report. The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) do not recommend payment of any
dividends in respect of the year.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on page 83.

Donations

No donations was made by the Group during the year (2017: nil).

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s properties are set out on page 84.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 30 April 2018.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 28 and note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Distributable Reserves

As at 30 April 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Law (2004 Revision) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately HK$321.4 million. This includes the Company’s share premium account,
in the amount of approximately HK$619.3 million as at 30 April 2018, which may be
distributed provided that immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In addition, the Company’s capital
redemption reserve in the amount of approximately HK$0.26 million may be distributed
in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

During the year ended 30 April 2018, the Company did not take out insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the Directors because it is believed that this legal risk to
the Directors is quite low.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Other than the share option scheme as set out in this annual report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the total Group’s revenue for the year. Purchases from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for less than 30% of the total Group’s purchases for the
year.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had an interest in the major customers and suppliers.

Commitments
The Group had no capital commitment during the year (2017: nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

Details of the exchange rate exposure are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:
Executive Directors:

Vong Tat leong David
Xu Siping

Independent non-executive Directors:

Fung Ka Keung David
Lam Lee G.
Wong Man Ngar Edna

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s articles of association, Xu Siping and
Wong Man Ngar Edna will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Independence Confirmation

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Company considers the independent non-executive Directors to
be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

Apart from the transactions disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements,
no Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company, or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Vong Tat leong David has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group
commencing on 3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by either party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing or until
terminated by mutual consent.

Xu Siping has an employment agreement with a subsidiary of the Group commencing on
3 September 2005, which will continue thereafter unless and until terminated by either
party giving not less than one month’s notice in writing or until terminated by mutual
consent.

Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board of Directors with reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Director’s and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures

As at 30 April 2018, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive
of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Approximate
percentage of
Name of Director Capacity Interest in shares shareholding
ExpR 514 R0 R BRERESL
Vong Tat leong David Held through a controlled corporation 99,050,000 51.54%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2018, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures in note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them or
was the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

Substantial Shareholder’s Interest in Shares and Underlying Shares

At 30 April 2018, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had interests in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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Approximate

percentage of
Name of shareholders Interest in shares shareholding
RREE R ERE BROFRBESL
Vongroup Holdings Limited 99,050,000 51.54%
Claman Global Limited 23,349,436 12.15%
Share Option Scheme B E

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 30 September 2011 (the “New
Scheme”). Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Directors of the Company, at their discretion,
may grant options to Directors, officers and employees (whether full time or part-time)
of the Company or a subsidiary and any other groups or classes of suppliers, customers,
sub-contractors or agents of the Group from time to time determined by the Directors as
having contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the Group. No
share options were outstanding nor granted during the year ended 30 April 2018.

Employment and Emolument Policies

As 30 April 2018, the Group had 25 employees in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the
market rates, workload and responsibilities and general economic situation. The Group’s
employee benefits include performance bonus, mandatory provident fund for Hong Kong
employees and social insurance packages for the PRC employees.

Connected Transactions

Certain related party transactions entered by the Group during the year ended 30 April
2018, which also constitute connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed
in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

Corporate Governance

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance and
has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (‘CG Code) as set out
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Further information on the Company’s corporate
governance practices is set out in the Corporate Governance Report.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 April 2015
have been audited by CCIF CPA Limited.

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the years ended 30 April 2016,
2017 and 2018 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, who was first
appointed by the Directors as the auditors of the Company for the year ended 30 April
2016 and will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of our Company and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Vong Tat leong David
Executive Director

Hong Kong
31 July 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is firmly committed to maintaining and improving the quality of corporate
governance so to ensure better transparency of the Company, protection of shareholders’
and stakeholders’ rights and enhance shareholder value.

During the year under review, the Company has complied with the code provisions of the
(G Code and periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure that these
continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code, except for the deviation from code
provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and A.6.7 of the CG Code as described below.

Under code provision A.2.1, the role of chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”)
should be performed by different individuals. Since September 2005, Vong Tat leong
David, who is a director and CEO of the Company, has also carried out the responsibilities
of the chairman of the Company. The Board considers the present structure is more
suitable to the Company for it can provide strong and consistent leadership and allow
for more efficient formulation and implementation of the Company’s development
strategies.

Under code provision A.4.1, non-executive Directors should be appointed for a specific
term, subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors of the Company, including
the independent non-executive Directors, are not appointed for a specific term but are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meetings of the
Company at least once every three years as specified in the provisions of the Company’s
articles of association. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than those in the CG Code.

Under code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive Directors shall attend general
meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders. There are
three independent non-executive Directors of the Company; they were unable to attend
the 2016 annual general meeting of the Company held on 27 September 2016 due to
their engagement with their other commitments.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code of conduct regarding securities transactions of the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, the Company confirms that all Directors have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code during the year ended 30 April 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition

As at 30 April 2018, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) comprises five members: two
executive Directors, namely Vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) and Xu Siping;
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Fung Ka Keung David, who has
the professional and accounting qualifications required by the Listing Rules, Lam Lee G.
and Wong Man Ngar Edna.

The biographical details of the Board members are set out on page 8 of this annual
report.

Board Meetings and Attendance Record

The Board held 4 Board meetings during the year ended 30 April 2018 and additional
Board meetings would be held when necessary. The Directors who cannot attend in
person might participate through other electronic means of communications. Due notice
and relevant materials for the meeting were given to all Directors prior to the meetings
in accordance with the Company’s articles of association and the CG Code. Details of
individual attendance of Directors are set out in the table below:

Members of the Board Attended/Held
VONG Tat leong David 4/4
XU Siping 4/4
FUNG Ka Keung David 3/4
LAM Lee G. 4/4

WONG Man Ngar Edna 4/4
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Roles and Functions

The function of the Board is to formulate corporate strategy and business development.
The Board meets regularly to discuss operational issues and valuate the financial
performance of the Group. The Board will consider and approve acquisition and disposal,
remuneration policy, appointment and retirement of Directors, connected transactions,
placing and repurchase of shares and dividend policy of the Group in pursuit of its
strategic goals, if required. The chairmanship of the Board of the Company is elected at
each Board meeting. Control and day to day operation of the Company is delegated to
the CEO and the management of the Company.

Induction and Continuing Development For Directors

The Directors are encouraged to attend external seminars and training programmes at
the Company’s expense to update themselves with legal and regulatory developments,
and the business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development to Directors will be arranged
whenever necessary.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG code, the roles of chairman and chief executive
should be separated and should not be performed by the same individual.

Vong Tat leong David, who is a director and CEO of the Company, has also carried out
the responsibilities of the chairman of the Company. The Board considers the present
structure is more suitable to the Company for it can provide strong and consistent
leadership and allow for more efficient formulation and implementation of the
Company’s development strategies.

The Company will, from time to time, review the effectiveness of the Group’s corporate
governance structure and consider whether any changes, including the separation of the
roles of Chairman and CEO, are necessary.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive Directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. The non-executive Directors of the Company,
including the independent non-executive Directors, are not appointed for a specific
term but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association, and the terms of their appointment will be reviewed when they are due
for re-election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to
ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting than those
in the CG Code.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of three independent non-executive
Directors, currently, Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Fung Ka Keung
David and Wong Man Ngar Edna. The Audit Committee members performed their duties
within written terms of reference formulated by the Company in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering all relationships between the
Company and the auditing firm (including the provision of non-audit services),
monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, any issues arising from
the audit and any other auditors may wish to raise and review of the Company’s internal
control and risk management.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year with an attendance rate of
100%. In the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial statements for the
year ended 30 April 2017 and for the six months ended 31 October 2017, considered
and approved the audit work of the auditors and reviewed the business and financial
performance of the Company and the internal control system and risk management.

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 April 2018 have been reviewed by the
Company’s Audit Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors, Lam Lee G. (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Fung Ka Keung
David, and one executive Director, Vong Tat leong David. The Remuneration Committee
members performed their duties within written terms of reference formulated by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The principle role of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s policies and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing policy on
such remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the remuneration policies and
approved the remuneration of the Directors. No executive Director has taken part in any
discussion about his/her own remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year with an attendance
rate of 100%. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed and approved the
remuneration of Directors according to their respective responsibilities, expertise and
performance.

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee is composed of two independent non-executive
Directors, Lam Lee G. and Fung Ka Keung David and one executive Director, Vong Tat
leong David (Chairman of the Nomination Committee). The Nomination Committee
members performed their duties with written terms of reference formulated by the
Company in accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

The Nomination Committee is responsible to review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members and select or make recommendations to
the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The Nomination
Committee is also responsible to assess the independence of the INEDs and to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular the chairman of the Company and CEO.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year with an attendance rate of
100%.

Corporate Governance Functions

During the year under review, the Audit Committee is responsible to help the Board for
determining the policy for the corporate governance of the Company and performing the
corporate governance duties as below:

* to develop and review the Group’s policies and practices on corporate governance
and make recommendations to the Board;

*  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management;

* to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with all legal
and regulatory requirements;

* to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and

* to review the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure requirements in
the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The amount of audit fee payable to HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited for the year
ended 30 April 2018 was HK$500,000.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing consolidated financial
statements for the financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the Group’s results and its cash flows.

The Directors consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The statement of the Auditors of the Company about their reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report to
this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr Tsui Siu Hung Raymond, the secretary of the Company, confirmed that he had
attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 30
April 2018.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
1) Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“‘EGM”)

Pursuant to the Articles 58 of the Articles of the Company, an EGM can be convened
on the requisition of one or more shareholders of the Company holding at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

2) Procedures for putting forward proposals at shareholders’ meeting

There are no provisions in the Articles of the Company or the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands for shareholders to move new resolutions at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may request the Company to convene
a general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph.

3) Shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send requisitions and requests to the Board or the secretary of the
Company in written form to the principal place of business of the Company at 17A,
EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

During the year ended 30 April 2018, there was no change to the articles of association
of the Company. The Company has posted its articles of association on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal control system to
safeguard shareholder investments and Company assets and with the support of the
Audit Committee, reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual basis. The
Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group. Such review covered the financial, operational, compliance and risk
management aspects of the Group including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget.

A EEARAT FHR2018
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEERRSE
ExZzae (&)
EECETEH
EERREARTEVMRFERRAET RN T REAEEMR
URAEEXERARSR2GENBREZEE

E=RRAKREERMEREA RBAFELE  SEER
RFFER R EREGAMB]RE -

BB 2 BIEEH

ARBCEBMAEENARERBHRR 2 AREER L 2B
BN AF IR B R EEDIRER

RNEWE

ARBWERKBEEBRANBE "S- \FOA=TRIL
FEREL2MAD/ NG EBEEIE -

% SRR
1) BRARBRREIAS (BREHAE DR

RIBARRRIZRMBNESE — B A ERIREERH
HIR AT D RA R R R A (M BRI A R B R
REERE)+ 92 —(10%)H BER R AE B & A 5 B
AARFEEGRWERHEMER BREEGAM
BRFRIARE  UEREERERPIEANEMNEIER: B
FZREREVIEXZERIZMQME A REIT WEXR
“t—@NER - BEEERAEAHZAE  AIRXERA
TAEBEUARBETAEHLE MEXERALEES
EREEHREMARELNMARXEHARARE
SKAPEHER o

2) MERAGRZZENIERF
AARERAIFEHS R EDERE G SUR TR A
RERASBEINRER - B BHHREROBIRATK
EE-BAAEEFERARRERBRAE -

3) BERAEESRHENR

BRI ER B RAZA IR BEREARARRTESL
EMBTEESHRARWE It AFBNEBRERE
B8 REBEEZ17TEAE -

REEBRE

RBE-Z-N\FOA=TRHLFE ARF2ABEEH
BEMER] - ARFENRIARAARE B 2 ML LHE
RAE|ERAA

R EE Rk AR R

EERBAARRAZAMEEHE  URERRZEER
ARARZEE WEBRZBEEXH TEFRIZHEZX
E-EERCHAKENAEENE 2 MEFLFRERT -
ZWEREANEE P 28 ARMEREESIEH 2
REREARAR BRAARAGHTAUBREZBREZER
LEBROATERLAGIAEREERGAE

17



18

Vongroup Limited Annual Report 2018

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HERERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT

We are pleased to present this report in accordance with the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 and
the requirements set out in Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules. The report describes the
Company’s policies that were designed to fulfill the Company’s obligations with respect
to sustainable development and social responsibilities areas, as required by the ESG
Guide. This report covers the operational information, which includes data and activities
of the Group’s head offices in Hong Kong and the PRC, and its reporting period covers
the period from 1 May 2017 to 30 April 2018 (the “Reporting Period”). The Group will
illustrate and highlight its efforts and performance in both environmental and social
aspects for the Group’s business operations in this report. In respect of the corporate
governance practices of the Company, please refer to the “Corporate Governance Report”
section of this annual report.

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS
Overview

We know that the quality of environmental protection procedures is very important
to achievement of long-term success of our Company. Our priority is to protect the
environment and our target is to minimise adverse impact on the environment by
adopting world class environmental protection practices in our operational activities.

We do our best to ensure that the concept of environmental sustainability is
integrated into every part of our daily business operations.

We keep on monitoring all types of changes in the ways of producing waste and/
or utilising energy during the process of carrying on our business activities with the
aim of mitigating any unfavourable impact of our operations on the environment.
We continually review and update our ESG policies, if applicable, to ensure that
there is a balance between sustainable corporate development and environmental
protection.

It is often our great desire to minimise the negative impact of our operational
activities on the environment by improving energy efficiency, reducing all kinds of
waste and supporting education as to environmental protection.

Emissions

The Group understands the importance of environmental protection. It actively
implements multiple measures for environmental protection in its operations and
formulates various management policies to reduce emissions.

While the main business of the Group is not production, its operations do not impose
much impact on water, land or air by way of greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and/or generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes.
We do not produce any hazardous waste and we strive to minimise volume of non-
hazardous waste that we produce during the course of our daily operations. Our
greenhouse gases emissions are indirectly, principally resulting from electricity
consumed at the Company’s workplace as well as from business travel by employees.

During the reporting period, the Group did not generate any significant hazardous
waste during its operations. Therefore, no relevant internal regulations have been
formulated.

Use of resources

The Group encourages the reduction of energy consumption. Energy saving light
bulbs and LED lighting systems are used in all offices of the Group. The Group
encourages making use of natural daylight and refrain from turning on unnecessary
lights during daytime. Meanwhile, rules on energy saving are implemented to ensure
that all equipment and lights of conference rooms are turned off when they are not
in use. Equipment and office machinery including but not limited to computers,
printers and photocopiers are to be switched to sleep mode immediately after use.
Employees are required to turn off lights and computers before leaving the office.
Energy saving devices are installed to reduce consumption of electricity and water
after office hours. The total electricity energy consumption during the Reporting
Period was 37,944 KWh.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)

(A) ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS (Continued)

(B

-

Use of resources (Continued)

We try our best to avoid unnecessary wastage of paper and promote effective
usage of paper. In our daily operations, we maximise usage of e-versions instead of
hardcopies wherever it is possible. We encourage our staff to work more effectively
in a paperless environment. In case there is still a need for printing, we make use
of double-sided printing generally, and reuse the recycled paper with one side of
it already used for those documents used internally. The total paper consumption
during the Reporting Period was 225 kg.

Meanwhile, the Group also adopts policy to reduce the use of disposable
consumables, such as disposable cutlery and plastic bottled water. Measures to
promote separation of waste for reuse and recycle are in place pursuant to which
certain consumables of photocopiers and printers such as cartridges and toners,
waste paper that cannot be reused and discarded computers are to be separated
from other daily solid waste for recycling.

SOCIAL ASPECTS
Employment

As at 30 April 2018, the total number of employees being employed by the Group
was 25 (2017: 14). The Group understands that human resource is one of its most
valuable assets, the provision of a stimulating and harmonious working environment
can improve the sense of belongings to its employees. Employees and Directors
are remunerated based on their educational qualifications, industry experience,
performance, current industry practices and prevailing market conditions and
in accordance with pertinent labour laws and regulations. Apart from the basic
package, for instance, severance payment, mandatory provident fund, employment
compensation insurance, annual leaves, sick leaves, additional remuneration and
benefits such as performance-based bonuses and other staff welfare benefits are
provided.

Health and Safety

Our Company complies with the relevant laws and regulations regarding industrial
safety, hygiene and health and other caring arrangements for employees. The
Company’s business operations do not involve any high-risk work activities that
could lead to serious industrial events or occupational health problems. We care
about our staff members’ health and safety. In this respect, the Company provides
relevant updates of occupational safety and health to its employees by means of
leaflets and training courses which are conducted by the Labour Department. During
the year, there was no case of injuries reported.

Development and Training

The Group encourages lifelong learning and offer trainings to its employees to
enhance their performance and to provide support to their personal development.
The objective of the Group’s human resource management is to reward and
recognise performing staff by a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, salaries and wages are reviewed annually based on
performance appraisals, qualifications, experience, position and seniority.

Labour Standard

The Group’s recruitment management system measures clearly on the staff’s age
requirement. Review and verification of applicant’s identity information is required
during the recruitment process, and recruitment of child labor is strictly prohibited.
Applicant is also required to provide document proofs of academic qualifications
and working experience for verifications, applicant who is suspected to have false
academic qualifications and working experience will not be employed. The Group
provides its staff with a safe, health, comfortable working environment with
labor protection, reasonable remuneration and various welfare. The Group enters
employment contract with each of its employees in accordance with relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, and has strictly complied with such laws
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HERERRE

ABOUT THIS REPORT (Continued)
(B) SOCIAL ASPECTS (Continued)
Supply Chain Management

It is the Group’s policy to undertake procurement so as to advance our economic,
environmental and social objectives. New suppliers will be assessed and their
products will be evaluated before engagement. Preference will be given to socially
responsible entities, energy efficient equipment and environmental friendly
products. Ongoing quality monitoring and supervision is in place to ensure
procurements are conducted specific to the Group’s requirement.

Product responsibility

The quality of the product is very important to the Group. The Group has establishes
various communication channels including company’s website, e-mail and telephone
for customers to give their feedback to the Group. Customer’s satisfaction will
become the driving force for the Group to increase the quality of the product. Also,
the Group respects the privacy of the customer, protecting customer’s and supplier’s
data and privacy of client information. They are kept in confidentiality and destroyed
in accordance with the Group’s policy on document retention.

Anti-corruption and Anti-Fraud

The Company maintains a high standard of business integrity throughout its
operations and tolerates no corruption or bribery in any form. We encourage the
reporting of suspected business irregularities and provide clear channels specifically
for this purpose. When suspected wrongdoings are identified, such as breach of
duty, abuse of power, receiving bribes, staff should report for investigation and
verification, and report to the regulator and/or to law enforcement authority when
necessary.

Community Investment

Although the Group was not involved in charity or community events during
the reporting period, it is committed to conducting business without making
any potential environmental and social impact to its stakeholders especially
its employees and the community members. The Company often explores the
opportunities of incorporating environmental and social elements into its
investment decisions and operational management, with reference to best practices
in the industry and internationally recognised ESG standards.
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Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HL

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF VONGROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Vongroup Limited (the
“Company’) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
26 to 82, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 April
2018, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 April 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”)
issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

A EEARAT FHR2018
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

BREtER

BREEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BMHNENAEERREENSZE

Fair value of investment properties

REMFEZAVE

Refer to Notes 2 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHRA MG REM 21215

The Group’s investment properties were carried at their estimated fair
values of approximately HK$232,073,000 as at 30 April 2018, with fair
value gain of approximately HK$35,817,000 for the year ended 30 April
2018 recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

RZZE-N\FHA=+H BSSEMNKREMERGTAFED
232,073,000 Tt 2 BE_Z—\FOA=1THILEFENRT
B ER£935,817,000/8 TR A 1w R E M 2 EKmER AL -

Management has estimated the fair values of the Group’s investment
properties based on independent external valuations. These valuations
are dependent on certain key assumptions that required significant
management judgment, including market unit value of comparable
properties, premium or discount adjustments to these market values
for factors specific to the characteristics of the Group’s properties
compared to recent sales on the comparable transactions and
assuming the properties are capable of being sold in existing status.
Accordingly, we have identified the estimation of fair values of the
investment properties as a key audit matter.
EENENBINMEERT BEEEREMENATE %
SHEKBE THERESR SEEREELERME RENE
hBEMENTSEMEE B EREMESHBEOEZSH
MISEEELOBLATELBRR 28 E BT EARE  WRR
¥ARBAHE FHt BEEBREMENDTEGBFTR R —IE
R ET EIH -

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s estimation of the valuation
of investment properties included:

B EREHREME Z HEGRRNEZTEE

.

Evaluating the independent valuer's competence, capabilities and objectivity;

MBI ERN RS ERE ) B2 R FEIE

Assessing the valuation methodologies used and the appropriateness and
reasonableness of the key assumptions used in the valuations, based on our
knowledge of the relevant industry and using our own valuation specialist to
assist us in our audit;
REBERMEREITENTRAAEDRME FOHEZER DR METE
o RMEEMFERANGEESEREZERENEEERE B

Checking, on sampling basis, the accuracy and relevance of the other input
data used where available.

RSB ABUR(INE ) RIS AR L -

We found the fair values of the investment properties were supported by the
available evidence.

HMER  REMENRFEFEES-

Impairment review of accounts receivable, loans and advances to money lending customers and other receivables

FEWCRSE - MM ERFERR B R AR RN R ER G

Refer to Notes 2, 20, 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

BLHRA T EREMFE2 20 21K%22 ¢

As at 30 April 2018, the Group had accounts receivable of
approximately HK$16,924,000, loans and advances to money lending
customers of approximately HK$12,851,000 and other receivables of
approximately HK$22,180,000.

RZZE-NFMA=+H" B%REHEWKIKRKL6924,000%
T MBUER P B R 2 514912,851,0007% 7T M H #f FEBGRIE £
22,180,000/8 7T °

Management judgment is required in assessing and determining the
recoverable amounts of these accounts receivable, loans and advances
to money lending customers and other receivables.

FTE R B R - M ER P B R B E At R R IE 8
AR EEEEZEEE L HIE -

The judgment mainly include estimating and evaluating expected
future receipts from customers or debtors based on past payment
trend, age of the balances and other available information concerning
the credit worthiness of counterparties.

A FERERBEREMNREY R REHEEH EENEMER
BER (hEF REHE AR R AR P S &S AR TERNRIER -

Accordingly, we have identified the impairment assessment of these
balances as a key audit matter.

Ht - B E ZERBOREFER AR —ARRETFE-

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment review of these receivables
included:

RIS R BT AR EA R FEE

Discussing with management concerning the Group’s procedures on granting
credit limits and credit/loan periods to customers.
BEBEH BEEBURTEPNEEREREE BERHNEF -

Evaluating the management’s impairment assessment including testing
on a sample basis, the underlying data used by management to assess the
collectability of those receivables.

SHEE R ERREE  BERRARE R ERENAEERE - U EZ
£ PRI R AT B 1 o

Checking on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of information
included in the impairment assessment of those receivables, where available.

MBS RUGTIRRE R 2ENER () i EE N RARRE -

Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions made by the
management in arriving at their estimates of future receipts from the
customers/debtors, based on our knowledge of the relevant industries.
RBRMEAEETEN TR STEEEEEMEARRERTP EBAR
O PR EH H B SRR ©

We found the management’s impairment assessment of the receivables supported
by the available evidence.

BMER - B EYREFRNREN G AR RS-



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matters

RRESEE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
BARHERE

BREEE®

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

BERWETNMEERREENSE

Carrying amount of available-for-sale investments and related issue

AHHEREZRAEREBESEE

Refer to Notes 2 and 18 to the consolidated financial statements.
BLHERA MG mERM 2518

As at 30 April 2018, the Group had available-for-sale investments of
carrying amount of approximately HK$48,499,000, which is significant
to the Group’s total assets. These available-for-sale investments
comprise mainly of unquoted equity securities stated at cost less
impairment, if any. No impairment loss was recognised for the year
ended 30 April 2018.

RZZE—-NFOA=+H"  E%5EHAKEEL48499,000/% TH)

following:

TEE

Our audit procedures in relation to the impairment review of available-for-sale
investments and the estimation of contingent consideration receivable include the

I A B R ERRERT G R RS AR EEETETHREF 21

* evaluating the appropriateness and reasonableness of the methodologies and

AHEHERE ZEAHNERET ERFZAAREREMD
BINROERBRARS BE-_T-/\FUA=THILFE
W R R (BRI -

key assumptions used in the impairment assessment and estimation of the
fair value of contingent consideration receivable processes as adopted by the
management.

< AHMEREEREEERANBRIARERFEGBTBEMERNT

Exercise of significant judgment is required to be made by
management when determining whether an objective evidence of
impairment loss existed for any of these equity investments as at 30
April 2018. In making this judgment, historical data and information
gathered from analyses of industry and sector performance, as well
as financial information regarding the investees and certain specific
conditions surrounding the transactions giving rise to the investments,
have to be analysed and taken into account by management in the
impairment assessment process.

EEER-_Z— \FNA=THOHRNIEERSFLAEREER
FEEBR EEREREHERAS EHELZAGS ET2E
AIEREMEIRFRONTELBIERANITER D BRBWED
ﬁﬂ-M&ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁﬂﬂ&ﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ%i%Wﬁ@%?%i

KA

In view of the significant judgments involved, we have identified the
impairment assessment of available-for-sale investments as key audit
matter.

SRS R E R IR - BAPTE A] G B IRE AR ERT 1R R RAR
Fit R

oo

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the Other
Information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

ERBERBROATERAEE -

* obtaining from management of the Group and assessing available financial
information of investees.

BEREERERSLAEREERRNUBEELR -

« obtaining and checking to the documentary evidence to support the
Company’s assessments, assumptions and estimations, where available.

« ERYREXE BEARRE  REREFHRXXEERIE)-

We found the impairment review of available-for-sale investments and estimation of
contingent consideration receivable supported by the available evidence.

HAPET - A ERERENE RERRAREN G AR EX S -

E=YHHMBENAR -HENBRFHTEINNER &
PEIEGA PR LB M ZEE RS ([HaER ).

BHMEGEAMBRENER TREEMER  BRMAL Y
UL B R ERTE AR E A ©
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern hasis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

*  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with Audit Committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Ng
Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practicing Certificate Number: P06417

Hong Kong, 31 July 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBEEkEMEZEKER
For the year ended 30 April 2018

BE-Z-\FNAZ=+tHLFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B s FE T T
Revenue Wz 4 23,541 12,767
Other revenue Hth W 6 1,068 1,078
Other gains HihZF 6 35 -
Cost of inventories consumed KOBERTFERAR (1,947) (64)
Staff costs 8 TAA (5,478) (8,454)
Operating lease rentals LERNES (610) (579)
Depreciation e (773) (525)
Other operating expenses Hihg & (12,151) (15,084)
Change in fair value of investment properties WEMEZ NFEE 15 35,817 6,620
Profit/(loss) from operations KRR (EE) 7 39,502 (4,247)
Finance costs B AR 8 (535) (486)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRBADER,(BE]) 38,967 (4,727)
Income tax Frig%t 9(a) (191) (80)
Profit/(loss) for the year NEERF(FE) 38,776 (4,807)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) REEHMEEBA (EE) NERFIE
for the year, net of tax
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: AT EENMNEEERCEE ¢
Gain on revaluation of investment property FHHREME W= 14 1,231 -
Items that may be reclassified subsequently HingEmoBsigsnsER ¢
to profit or loss:
Exchange difference on translating of foreign REGINEBEEZENZHE
operations 1,966 (1,648)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, REEHMEEBA (FE) NBRBE
net of tax 3,197 (1,648)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ARARFEEABGEERZERA (FR)EAHE
attributable to the owners of the Company 41,973 (6,455)
Earnings/(loss) per share (HK$) BREF (FE)(BT)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 13 0.2018 (0.0264)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

BEMP BRI S a iRk 2z — 8D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
FEMBRR R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BE-Z-N\FHNA=Z+HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EtF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B3 FET FABT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y WEREE 14 13,838 14,024
Investment properties SEYE 15 232,073 193,939
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and TEEVE BMEAIEINZES
equipment 17 367 367
Available-for-sale investments AEEERE 18 48,499 48,499
294,777 256,829
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 75 19 - 1,947
Forfeited collateral held for sale FERRUBEER G 19 768 699
Accounts receivable FEULER X 20 16,924 4,050
Loans and advances to money lending customers REEFER KRR 21 12,851 15,664
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables e BHNBRIREMEUERR 22 40,596 38,912
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss BATFENERIREZESHIGE 23 17,355 21,483
Cash and bank balances RE MIRITHE SR 24 34,626 36,676
123,120 119,431
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and deposits received FEEFENE Wik e 25 4,312 2,886
Bank borrowings RITIEE 26 28,188 30,140
Tax payables FERTTRIR 27(a) 829 829
33,329 33,855
Net current assets RBEEFE 89,791 85,576
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBARE 384,568 342,405
Non-current liabilities FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBAE 27(b) 801 611
NET ASSETS BEFE 383,767 341,794
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRA R
Share Capital [ 28 7,688 7,688
Reserves & 30 376,079 334,106
TOTAL EQUITY mRER 383,767 341,794

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors on 31 July 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Vong Tat leong David
BEE
Director

EE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial
statements.

ARTZBANBBREEFAR -2~ \FLA=T—H

PERRERGTH T EERRES

Xu Siping
Director

BEE
BEMI M SR SR a M B3R 2 — &0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FERBREHR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BE-ZF-/\FNA=THLEE

Property Capital ~ Statutory  Exchange
Share Share revaluation redemption surplus  translation Accumulated
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
WEERE REAER  LTRH
BE  REOEE & e e ERRE ZBEEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TR T TAT TR T FHT
At 1 May 2016 RZE-—R"FRA—H 6,754 574,421 - 262 270 2,592 (274,343) 309,956
Loss for the year AEEFR - - - - - - (4,807) (4,807)
Other comprehensive loss for the FREMEESE:
year:
Items that may be reclassified HEnaEsBEERa
subsequently to profit and EH
loss:
Exchange difference on MEBNER ERESR
translating of foreign
operations - - - - - (1,648) - (1,648)
Total comprehensive loss for the FREZAEEERLE
year - - - - - (1,648) (4,807) (6,455)
Issue of shares BT 934 37,359 - - - - - 38,293
At 30 April 2017 and 1 May 2017 RZZ—+FMNA=+AK
I +ERR-B 7688 611,780 - 262 270 944 (2791500 341,794
Profit for the year KERRF - - - - - - 38,776 38,776
Other comprehensive income for FREMZEKA :
the year:
Items that will not be HreEMsBEBE 2 ER
reclassified to profit and loss:
Gain on revaluation of BRRANE WG
investment property - - 1,231 - - - - 1,231
Items that may be reclassified HgngsmoBeaay
subsequently to profit and EH
loss:
Exchange difference on BEBINEREE EREE
translating of foreign
operations - - - - - 1,966 - 1,966
Total comprehensive income for FREAENAGE
the year - - 1,231 - - 1,966 38,776 41,973
At 30 April 2018 RZE-NEMB=1+H 7,688 611,780 1,231 262 270 2,910 (240,374) 383,767
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial — BEBIFI TR IS4G AT HEHRER 2 — 3D

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERERER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BE-E-/\FNA=THILEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —EtF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FABT
Operating activities rEER
Profit/(loss) before taxation KA AT (E518) 38,967 (4,727)
Adjustments for: TEPETIEE -
Bank interest income RITF BMA 6 (100) (151)
Finance costs B S B AR 8 535 486
Dividend income on equity investments BHIRE ZREWA 4 (428) (265)
Other interest income H A F B A 6 (750) (750)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W - WE RERETE 14 773 525
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment Y% - BB kAR s 6 (35) -
Net gain on equity investments at fair value through BATENERIEZ FHIEE 2 F
profit or loss (2,263) (5,368)
Change in fair value of investment properties WEME L N FEEE 15 (35,817) (6,620)
Operating cash flows before movement in working EEESHEAIZKERER
capital 882 (16,870)
Decrease in inventories FEERL 1,947 64
Increase in forfeited collateral held for sale SRR BRI @ L N - (42)
Increase in accounts receivable JE Uiz BR FR 3 (12,874) -
Decrease/(increase) in loans and advances to money MRERFER R TOR D, (En)
lending customers 2,777 (646)
Increase in deposits, prepayments and other Be AR IR R R E A YRR F L 0
receivables (1,002) (13,251)
Decrease in equity investments at fair value through BRATENBRYIEREZBFRERD
profit or loss 6,400 86
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and deposits received FEE A R E MRS M, CRd) 1,384 (1,635)
Cash used in operations EEARS (486) (32,294)
PRC enterprise income tax paid BT B EEH 27(a) (1) (8)
Net cash used in operating activities REEBFMACREFE (487) (32,302)
Investing activities REEH
Bank interest received BUERTTR S 6 100 151
Dividend received from listed securities B EMESFRE 4 428 265
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BEME  WEM&E 14 (1,023) (611)
Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment HEWE BB MREMEZHIE 35 -
Net cash used in investing activities REFEBAZRESFE (460) (195)
Financing activities RUESEE
Bank interest paid EATRITF B 8 (535) (486)
Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEE (1,952) (1,936)
Net cash used in financing activities RETEMACESFE (2,487) (2,422)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBESESEER RS FE (3,434) (34,919)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEETE R E) 2 B 1,384 (794)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the FUReRBELEEER
year 36,676 72,389
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year FRESRESEHEER 34,626 36,676
Represented by: HUTRE:
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTHE R 24 34,626 36,676

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.
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1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.
The address of its principal place of business is 17A, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 37.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”), Vongroup Holdings Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), is the parent and the ultimate holding
company and Mr Vong Tat leong David is the ultimate controlling party of the Company, who is
also the chief executive officer and an executive director of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong. These consolidated financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs which are first effective or available
for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2018 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”).

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), rounded to the nearest thousand except otherwise indicated. Hong Kong
dollar is the functional currency of the Company and of the most subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
is the historical cost basis, except for investment properties and equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss that are measured at fair values.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.
In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in HKAS 36
Impairment of Assets.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

b)

9

Basis of preparation of the financial statements (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into
Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,
which are described as follows:

+ Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

+ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the
judgments about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have a significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in
note 34.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether
the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are
considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised
at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a
financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at
cost less impairment losses (see note 2(j)), unless the investment is classified as held for sale
(or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related
costs are generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are
recognised at their fair values, except that:

— adeferred tax asset or liability arising from the assets acquired and liabilities assumed
in a business combination and the potential tax effects of temporary differences and
carryforwards of an acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes;

— assets or liabilities relating to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and
measured in accordance with HKAS 19 Employee Benefits;

— liabilities or equity instruments relating to share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace
share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date; and

— assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS
5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in
accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition
date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-controlling interests
are measured at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRSs.

Where the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes
assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the
consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted
retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the
“measurement period” (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts
and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity. Contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability
is remeasured at subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, or HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss being recognised
in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

d)

e)

f)

Business combinations (Continued)

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition date fair value and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the
acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be
appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the
reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are
adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed
at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised at that
date.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date
of acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If some or all of the goodwill allocated to a cash-generating unit was acquired
in a business combination during the current annual period, that unit shall be tested for
impairment before the end of the current annual period. If the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the
other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses
(see note 2(j)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

— leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is depreciated over the term of
lease;

—  buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the shorter of the unexpired
term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more than 50 years after the
date of completion;

—  Leasehold improvements 20% or over the remaining term of the lease,

if shorter

—  Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10%-20%

—  Motor vehicles 20%
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f)

g)

h)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are
reviewed annually.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference between the net proceeds on disposal and the
carrying amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement
or disposal.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest (see note 2(i)) to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include
land held for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at fair
value, unless they are still in the course of construction or development at the end of the
reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably measured at that time. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 2(u)(iv).

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating lease to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, the interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property interest which has been
classified as an investment property is accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 2(i)), and the same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are applied
to other investment properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments are accounted
for as described in note 2(i).

Other investments in equity securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in equity securities, other than
investments in subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction
price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the
transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for
an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated
otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending
on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss does not include any dividends
or interest earned on these investments as these are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out in note 2(u)(v) and (ii).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

h)

Other investments in equity securities (Continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above categories are classified
as available-for-sale securities. At the end of each reporting period the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the investment revaluation reserve. As an
exception to this, investments in equity securities that do not have a quoted price in an
active market for an identical instrument and whose fair value cannot otherwise be reliably
measured are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(j). Dividend income from equity securities is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(u)(v).

When the investments are derecognised or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss recognised
in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

—  Property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as an investment property on a property-by
property basis and, if classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 2(g)); and

—  Land held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a building situated thereon at
the inception of the lease, is accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease was first entered
into by the Group, or taken over from the previous lessee.

ii)  Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance leases, the amounts
representing the fair value of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of
the minimum lease payments, of such assets are included in property, plant and
equipment and the corresponding liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided at rates which write off the
cost of the assets over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group will
obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset, as set out in note 2(f). Impairment
losses are accounted for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out in note
2(j). Finance charges implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss over
the period of the leases so as to produce an approximately constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

iij) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged as expenses in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except where the property is classified as an
investment property (see note 2(g)).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

j) Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of investments in equity securities and other receivables

Investments in equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss
events:

—  significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— asignificant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

f any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognised as
follows:

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at cost, impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset where the effect of discounting is material. Impairment losses for
equity securities carried at cost are not reversed.

—  For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at
amortised cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively where these financial
assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and
have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial
assets which are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except
for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade and other receivables and loans
and advances to money lending customers, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade and other receivables
and loans and advances to money lending customers directly and any amounts held
in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

i)

k)

Impairment of assets (Continued)
if)  Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in
the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment;

—  deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and equipment;

—  goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a
cash-generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount
of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that
the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

—  Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there
has been a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out basis and comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k)

m)

n)

o)

p)

q)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognised as an
expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any
writedown of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised
as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of
any write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts, except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful
debts (see note 2(j)).

Loans and advances to money lending customers

Loans and advances to money lending customers are non-derivatives financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, other than (i)
those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term, which are classified
as held for trading; (ii) those that the Group, upon initial recognition, designates as at fair
value through profit or loss or as available-for-sale; or (iii) those where the Group may not
recover substantially all of its initial investments, other than because of credit deterioration,
which will be classified as available-for-sale. Loans and advances to money lending
customers mainly comprise pawn loans, unsecured and secured loans. Pawn loans are loans
provided whereby personal property mainly such as gold, jewellery and diamonds, watches
and consumer electronic products are used as collateral for the security of the loans.
Unsecured loans are loans without collateral. Secured loan is a loan provided whereby the
property is used as collateral for the security of the loan.

Forfeited collateral held for sale

Forfeited collateral are initially recognised at the amortised cost of the related outstanding
loans on the date of repossession, which is generally below the net realisable value of the
repossessed assets. Upon repossession of the assets, the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances, if any, are derecognised from the consolidated
statement of financial position. Subsequently, forfeited collateral is carried at the lower
of the amount initially recognised or net realisable value and are therefore written down
if and when the net realisable value falls to below the carrying amount of the asset. The
excess of the net proceeds over the carrying amount of the forfeited collateral is recognised
as a gain upon the disposal of the assets.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised
cost with any difference between the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Other payables

Other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at
cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Uy

s)

Employee benefits

i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

i) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of the share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the
probability that the share options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year under review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of share options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to accumulated losses).

iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognises restructuring costs
involving the payment of termination benefits.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include
those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided
those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset
can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

s)

Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2(g), the amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
using the tax rates that would apply on sale of those assets at their carrying value at the
reporting date unless the property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented
separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current
tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either:

—  the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or
realise and settle simultaneously.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

u)

v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivables. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Revenue from food and beverage businesses

Revenue from food and beverage businesses is recognised when catering services have
been provided to customers.

i) Interest income

Interest income (including financial services income) is recognised in profit or loss on
an accruals basis using the effective interest method.

iii) Revenue from sale of forfeited collateral

Revenue from sale of forfeited collateral is recognised on the transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which generally coincides with the time when the forfeited
collateral is delivered and the title has passed to customer.

iv) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income under operating leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of
the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised
as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

v)  Dividend income

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established. Dividend income from listed investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

vi) Revenue from technology and media businesses

Revenue from technology and media businesses is recognised when the services have
been performed to customers.

vii) Revenue from trading of securities

Net gains/losses on equity investments at fair value through profit or loss and those
held for trading include realised gains/losses which are recognised on a transaction
dates when the relevant contract notes are exchanged; and unrealised fair value gains/
losses which are recognised in the period in which they arise.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rate
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss, except those arising from
foreign currency borrowings used to hedge a net investment in a foreign operation which
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was
measured.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

v) Translation of foreign currencies (Continued)

The results of foreign operations are translated into HK$ at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Consolidated statement of financial position items, including goodwill arising on
consolidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are translated
into HK$ at the closing foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the exchange translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of that
operation attributable to owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

x) Related parties

a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that
person:

i) has control or joint control over the Group;
i) has significant influence over the Group; or

iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:

) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the

entity).

viii

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel service to the Group’s or the Group’s parent.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

x) Related parties (Continued)

b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions apply:
(Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;
(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and
(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction when there is a transfer of
resources, services or obligations between the Group and a related party, regardless of
whether a price is charged.

y) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial information provided regularly to the chief
executive director of the Company, being the Group’s chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in
respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production processes, the
type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has applied the following new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first
time in the current year:

Disclosure Initiative

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised Losses

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities: Clarification of
the Scope of HKFRS 12

HKAS 7 (Amendments)

HKAS 12 (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 12
included in Annual
Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year has
had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative for the first time in the
current year. The amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes.

Specifically, the amendments require the following to be disclosed: (i) changes from financing
cash flows; (ii) changes arising from obtaining or losing control of subsidiaries or other
businesses; (iii) the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates; (iv) changes in fair values; and (v)
other changes.

A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is provided in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements. Consistent with the transition provisions of the
amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative information for the prior year. Apart from
the additional disclosure in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements, the application of
these amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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4. REVENUE

Revenue represents revenue from the principal activities of the Group. The amount of each
significant category of revenue recognised in revenue during the year is as follows:

Wz

WEEAKE 2 EBEBRA FNERAKERAZ SRR
BT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EF—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FAT

Financial services income S BRI A 3,139 2,413
Unrealised gain on equity investments at fair value through profit #ZAF(EIEZYIER (1R AFEUEZRIE ) 2 BHFK

or loss (“FVTPL") Bz ARBERN 1,781 4,849

Realised gain on equity investments at FVTPL* BRAFENERSRZEFEE 2B EBR KRE 482 519

Gross rental income from investment properties REFREDEZRES WA 3,937 4,553

Income from technology & media business BRI S CESCIVON 9,454 12

Income from food & beverage business BREBKRA 4,320 156

Dividend income on equity investments BHIEE 2 BREMWA 428 265

23,541 12,767

* The gross proceeds from disposal of equity investments at FVTPL for the year were approximately
HK$6,848,000 (2017: approximately HK$2,351,000).

5. SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organised by business lines (products
and services). In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported internally to
the Group’s executive directors, being the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment, the Group has presented the following six reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

1. Financial services: Consumer finance, moneylending, other financial/business services
and related activities

2. Securities: Securities and related activities
3. Property: Real property and related activities

4. Technology & Media: ~ Technology & media and related activities

5. Food & Beverage: Catering services, other food & beverage business and related
activities
6. Corporate treasury Management of treasury activities of the Group and related

management: activities

O FREERATFEUNEEIRZREREZMEREALEAN
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5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a)

Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s CODM monitors the revenue, results, assets and liabilities attributable
to each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets principally comprise all tangible assets and current assets with the exception
of certain available-for-sale investments and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include accruals and deposits received, tax payables and deferred tax liabilities attributable
to the operating activities of the individual segments and bank borrowings managed
directly by the segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable segments with reference to sales
or financing activities generated by those segments and the expenses incurred by those
segments or which otherwise arise from the depreciation to those segments.

Segment revenues and results
Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as provided to the Group’s CODM for

the purposes of resources allocation and assessment of segment performance for the years
ended 30 April 2018 and 2017 is set out below:
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a)

Segment revenue
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Segment profit/(loss)

AEW R 2EEF(FHE)
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —+t& —E-N\F —t%F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FAT
Revenue from external customers: REIMFE LU
Financial Services & AR 3,139 2,413 2,390 1,583
Securities FH 2,691 5,633 2,672 5,619
Property LIES 3,937 4,553 39,024 10,385
Technology & Media Bl R 1 6 9,454 12 1,636 (5,224)
Food & Beverage B8 4,320 156 2,373 92
Inter-segment: H¥Ef -
Corporate treasury management TEMKER 7,122 7,992 - -
Segment total DIEBE 30,663 20,759 48,095 12,455
Elimination Eagi) (7,122) (7,992) - -
Segment results FESs 23,541 12,767 48,095 12,455
Unallocated items: KHBIER :
Other revenue and other gains H A Weas K H b 22 7 1,003 985
Unallocated corporate expenses AOBEMRT (9,596) (17,681)
Finance costs BARS R AN (535) (486)
Profit/(loss) before taxation MEL AR A, (E518) 38,967 (4,727)
Income tax FRiSH (191) (80)
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(EE) 38,776 (4,807)

Funds financing activities between segments are carried out at mutually agreed terms.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment without allocation
of other revenue and other gains, corporate expenses and finance costs of the Group that
are not allocated to individual segments are classified as unallocated items. This is the
measurement basis reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance.

SEEZELRA BT IR EIRE < EFETT

QREDBZ Gt HRBEAEE &
B WA @M 12
ot g B AT (£ RIS B TSR AR 3 4R

BB - W ARARS BRI HS RRANAEELE
E2MIHELE.

FHBRAER - 2 8E A
RESEREENE T EBD B ZARE
SR
R

JiE]

45



46

Vongroup Limited Annual Report 2018
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REBB|RME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BECE-/\FNA=TALEE

5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

a) Segment revenue, results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

DS ()
a) 2EWE ¥XE BERRERE)

Segment assets and liabilities SHREEREE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Segment assets PHEE

Financial services SRR 30,849 33,843
Securities FH 17,356 21,483
Property bIES 235,267 199,613
Technology & Media Rty M 48 72,338 63,807
Food & Beverage B 7,546 3,274
Corporate treasury management EFBER 17,331 17,101
Total reportable segment assets MERMHBEE 380,687 339,121
Unallocated property, plant and equipment RAOELYE BB K& 13,816 13,995
Unallocated available-for-sale investments AOBAIHEERE 1,532 1,532
Unallocated cash and bank balances AOBRE MRITLEH 307 358
Unallocated other receivables® IR 93 Bt At R BR SR 20,653 19,903
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEEEAE 902 1,351
Consolidated total assets REBERSE 417,897 376,260

* Unallocated other receivables represented the right arising from the termination of an available-for-sale

investment in Tian Da Energy Holdings Limited (“Tian Da”).

o RpEE YRR E AR R R AR BIRIEA AR A A 2 ] i
ERAMEE T

2018 2017
e —E—ts
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT

Segment liabilities PEEE
Financial services S RR% 180 164
Property bIES 30,640 31,760
Technology & Media Ry K R 88 560 551
Total reportable segment liabilities BEFRHFEAR 31,380 32,475
Unallocated liabilities kol aE 2,750 1,991
Consolidated total liabilities LA AEEE 34,130 34,466

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between

segments:

— segment assets exclude certain property, plant and equipment, available-for-sale
investments, cash and bank balances, other receivables and other unallocated

corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

— segment liabilities exclude certain accruals and deposits received and other

unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

REZNBRERRSEEIRERME ¢

- DEAETREETVE BERRE AHHEER
& RE RRITER B RUTIRA R AR A B R
XEAE RAAMNSEEDGHEMEEE-

- NRARTEREETEARARCERE REMARDE
tEEE REANFAGEDHRE-HERE-

Other segment information AmMAEER
Additions to non-current assets® Depreciation Bank interest income
BEFRDEE" wE RITFIBWA
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF —E2-N\F e 3 —E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET TR FET FTERT FET
Financial services R RG - 1 13 97 36
Technology & Media B R 48 - 17 - - 1
Food & Beverage B - - - 3 -
Corporate treasury EGKERE
management - - - - 114
Unallocated ROBEHE 1,023 645 512 - -
Total st 1,023 773 525 100 151

* Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments.

* ERBEETEEURHERE -



5. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

NOTES

A EEARAT FHR2018

TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

BE-Z—- N\FEA=+HLEE

5. 2EHRE@E)

b) Revenue from major products and services b) FEERMRBREZWKE
Please refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements for more details. BHEE LG F2HGAVBHRERME -
¢) Geographical information o hiEgER
The Group’s operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau. KEBEBREBHMRES BB KBRPT -
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers is presented based on the BRANIKRBEFEEZAREBWRAZER NRIRHTFEFZ
location of goods physically delivered to or location of services provided to customers and HREERS e RS E R TR E 2B MES - M
the location of the investments being listed. Information about its non-current assets is BEHIERBEE 2B NIREEMEMAEME
based on geographical location of the assets.
Revenue Non-current assets
Wz FERBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F —E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
Hong Kong EE 22,935 12,241 268,897 232,875
PRC s 518 526 9,196 8,854
Macau JRPT 88 - 16,684 15,100
Total @t 23,541 12,767 294,777 256,829
d) Information about major customers d EBHRIEEFZER

Revenue from a major customer, which amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s revenue, is
set out below:

RE-—RTBRF(ZEPEASEKE10%EIA L) 2 e
HIAT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Customer A (Note) BEPAMEE) 3,600 -
Note: No information on revenue for the year ended 30 April 2017 was disclosed for this customer, BEE - HRZEPFREBE-_Z—+FNA=1THIFEHEAK
which did not contribute 10% or more than to the Group’s revenue for the year ended 30 April SEUEEERMI%SEA L MBEE-T—+FMNA=+HY
2017. AEBZEP 2 WaEEH -

6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER GAINS

6. Hftim R HRF

2018 2017
e S
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT

Other revenue Hitb Wz
Bank interest income RITHFBUA 100 151
Other interest income HAbF B UA 750 750
Management fee income BB 200 120
Sundry income HIBRA 18 57
1,068 1,078

Other gains Hip 2 A
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment b ER Y 6 35 -
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7. PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS

The Group’s profit/(loss) from operations is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

7. EEWR(BE)

AEEEHELEEH W/ (BIR) Dk /G A%

15 :
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cost of inventories consumed KOBRETERA 1,947 64
Staff costs (including Directors” emoluments — note 10): BIRA(BEESHES —3E10):
Wages and salaries TERFH® 5,399 8,362
Contribution to retirement benefit scheme RURIEFIET B3R 79 92
5,478 8,454
Auditor’'s remuneration — audit services® ZBRN & — 2B ARTE* 500 500
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WEREETE 773 525
Exchange loss, net* [E 5 B8 s 5 25 557
Operating lease rentals — minimum lease payments KLERNEE - REBROER 610 579
Gross rental income from investment properties less direct outgoings of 3 B % & ¥)3 2 A & W AR B 1% X H14167,00078
approximately HK$167,000 (2017: approximately HK$209,000) TL(ZZ—+4F : £9209,00077T) (3,770) (4,344)
*  Thisitem is included in other operating expenses. * WIAR DA AHMKLHY -
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BIEHA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&TT
Interest on bank borrowings not wholly repayable within five years BERAFRBEEEZRITEENS 535 486
The analysis shows the finance costs of bank borrowings, including term loans which contain ZONMBRBREEREEH TEEHREERZRITEE
a repayment on demand clause, in accordance with the agreed scheduled repayment dates set (BEMEREREEGRZETHER ) 2R A -BE-Z

out in the loan agreements. For the year ended 30 April 2018, the interest on bank borrowings
which contain a repayment on demand clause amounted to approximately HK$535,000 (2017:

approximately HK$486,000).

9. INCOME TAX

a) Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other a)

comprehensive income represents:

9. FIBH

GERBERAMRERBRAZHAEHIE

—NFEHA=+HILFE WEREKEEFERZRITEREZF
B# 553500078 T (—Z—H4F : 49486,000/8 7T )

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHTT

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) (note 27(a)) PR ERTEH([BEMEHD(M27() 1 8
Deferred tax (note 27(b)) EIEREIE (M sE27(b))

— Current year —AFE 190 72

Income tax charge for the year AEERERIE 191 80

No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands, BVI and Hong Kong has been made as
the Group has no assessable income for the year in these jurisdictions (2017: Nil).

The provision for PRC EIT is calculated at the standard rate of 25% (2017: 25%) on the
estimated assessable income for the year as determined in accordance with the relevant

income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

(ZZT—tF: |)

TR AT E R

FEERFATECHERS RBEXHE LB BRI
FIERRBIN  EUL I 554 5 BDERE R 2 PRIS TR e

TR RS DRET RERA SRR RERERE
ZIRRER R 25%( Z B — 4 ¢ 25%)  RAFEA 2 EFHER
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BE-Z-\FENA=tHLEE

9. INCOME TAX (Continued) 9. FiEBi(E)
b) Reconciliation between tax charge/(credit) and accounting loss at applicable tax b) BEXH (ER)EZEARRIEZSTHEZYE:
rates:
2018 2017
—Z-N\E§ —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREBATIE(B8) 38,967 (4,727)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, calculated at the rate applicable to  FREEATE 182 B EHIE - 2 AR GRS BlEER RE
profits in the tax jurisdictions concerned FlzBEmEtE 6,337 (876)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose FARASZ 2 HETE 479 543
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose BERRBAZ G E (7,757) (2,083)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not recognised AERADATEBRRETE 1,184 2,424
Tax effect of temporary differences recognised ERRAEREZEIRETE (52) 72
Income tax charge for the year AEEMBHRIE 191 80
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. ESME
Directors’ emolument disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong  REEMR FHRAILREBATENHBEZEEMEMT ¢
Companies Ordinance are as follows:
Year ended 30 April 2018
BE-Z-\EWNA=1+HLEE
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
Fees in kind Total
e
p=3:)
ok REWER st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET FHET
Executive Directors BITES
vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) =iEH (THER) 1,100 600 1,700
Xu Siping BRETFE 500 - 500
Independent non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Fung Ka Keung David VSR 100 - 100
Lam Lee G. MR8 150 - 150
Wong Man Ngar Edna TR 100 - 100
1,950 600 2,550
Year ended 30 April 2017
HE-_Z—+FUA=1+BILFE
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
Fees in kind Total
e
AL
e REWREF “w@Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAET FAT
Executive Directors BITES
Vong Tat leong David (Chief Executive Officer) =iES (ITBBE) 3,500 600 4,100
Xu Siping BRETF 500 - 500
Independent non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Fung Ka Keung David 3298 100 - 100
Lam Lee G. N 150 - 150
Wong Man Ngar Edna B9 100 - 100
4,350 600 4,950
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10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Directors’ emolument disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance are as follows: (Continued)

No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the years ended 30
April 2018 and 2017.

During the year ended 30 April 2018, Vong Tat leong David, the executive director of the
Company, agreed to waive his remuneration of HK$4,300,000 (2017: agreed to waive his
remuneration of HK$1,900,000). Other than this, there was no arrangement under which a
Director waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for both years.

10.

E=ME )

BEEALTRIREFERARGIREZEEMEWT : (&)

RBE-Z-\FR-Z-—tFNA=TRLFE KEBLHE
(6] (6] 8 52 19 Sl R BN & AR 5| {0 S BB A SR M SR (R R IR
B BRI

RBE-ZT-\FUA=THLFE ARARTEFHES
ERBEMEEME4300,0008T(—F—tF : AEREEMNSE
1,900,000/ 70 ) Br it 2 A1 - R A BL BT U R EE =
MEXFABREEMHE -

11. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 1. BREMESES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017: two) are Directors whose ARNEMEEATA ME(ZE—+F: MB)AES HiE
emoluments are disclosed in note 10 above. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the RERMFEFI0RE - HEMW=R( 2 —+F : =) AT 2 He
other three (2017: three) individuals were as follows: T
2018 2017
—E-N\F B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Salaries and other benefits %? R H fth 3@ F 1,704 2,176
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET B 44 54
1,748 2,230
The emoluments fall within the following bands: BN T AT &R -
2018 2017
—B-N\F —+F
Nil — HK$1,000,000 L 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid individuals as an HE-Z—)\ER-_ZT—tFNA=-THLEFE AEETEH
inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office during the R AMFHN RS AT AERBS  fEAMARER R MNAR
years ended 30 April 2018 and 2017. 2 RS IEABERE(E -
12. DIVIDENDS 12. BRE
The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividends for the year ended 30 April 2018 EEWARBRNBE-_T—\FNA=FTHRILEFEZRE(=Z
(2017: Nil). T—LF  E)e
13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BREAF (FB)

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable to the owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

AR FFE A SRER REERF,/ (R H RN TA
R

2018 2017
—B-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Earnings/(loss) 2R, (K5E)
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per ~ FhaTEEBREAR EERT (EE) 2 &5, (EE)
share 38,776 (4,807)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic ~ gtit & G EA R #E AT (Fi8) 2 LBk niE T
and diluted earnings/(loss) per share I 192,189,833 182,018,435
For the years ended 30 April 2018 and 2017, diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic BE-_Z-N\EK

earnings/(loss) per share as there was no potential diluted event.

TE—LFHAZTHILEFE  ARERE
BEEERG wEREERN(BE) BRERERETN, (8

B)HER



14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. P¥E BERZRE

A EEARAT FHR2018
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BE-Z-\FENA=tHLEE

Leasehold
land and Furniture,
buildings held fixtures
for own use Leasehold and Motor
carried at cost improvements equipment vehicles Total
BARE A
JERERR B4 -
ZHE T HE ®#E
kEgF MEEE PES RE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHT FAT FAT
Cost 2%
At 1 May 2016 R-ZE—RFRA—H 15,926 105 945 3,874 20,850
Additions NE - - 25 586 611
Written off s - - - (806) (806)
Exchange adjustments JEH AR - (1) (16) - (17)
At 30 April 2017 and 1 May 2017 RZZE—tEFMNA=+BEK
—E—+FHA—H 15,926 104 954 3,654 20,638
Additions NE - - 21 1,002 1,023
Transferred to investment property (note 15) & Z= 34 & ¥ 2 ([ 5515) (533) - - - (533)
Disposals BE - - - (180) (180)
Exchange adjustments JE R AR - 22 - 24
At 30 April 2018 RZZ—\FMNA=+H 15,393 106 997 4,476 20,972
Accumulated depreciation RENE
At 1 May 2016 R-ZE—RFRA—H 2,138 98 799 3,874 6,909
Charge for the year REEZH 442 7 76 - 525
Written off s - - - (806) (806)
Exchange adjustments JEH AR - (1) (13) - (14)
At 30 April 2017 and 1 May 2017 RZZE—EFMNA=+BAK
—E—+FHA—H 2,580 104 862 3,068 6,614
Charge for the year AREEZZ M 435 - 37 301 773
Transferred to investment property (note 15) B2 Z= % & ¥ % (MI5E15) (94) - - - (94)
Disposals RE - - - (180) (180)
Exchange adjustments E AR - 19 - 21
At 30 April 2018 R=F—-N\FEWA=1+AH 2,921 106 918 3,189 7,134
Carrying amount REE
At 30 April 2018 R-ZE—N\FHWNA=+H 12,472 - 79 1,287 13,838
At 30 April 2017 R-E—+tFMA=1+H 13,346 - 92 586 14,024
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14.

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

At 1 November 2017, a car parking space located in Hong Kong under medium-term leases with
a carrying amount of approximately HK$439,000 was transferred to investment properties due to
the change in use. An increase in fair value through revaluation of the property of approximately
HK$1,231,000 was recognised in property revaluation reserve, which was determined on the
basis of a valuation carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, Asset Appraisal Limited, at

fair value of HK$1,670,000 at the date of transfer.

The analysis of carrying amounts of leasehold land and buildings held for own use is as follows:

14. WE - BERRE(E)

RZT—+F+—A—B —(EAREFHAERE2EEAEN S
439,000 T2 BEBEVEAAREFOEEERENE - BBEM
W% 2 AFEEINL1,231,0008 TE R EEHHBERER
ERBIAEMTRREEETEBREEAERABIZNERAH
ZAF 181,670,000 T T 2 (HEEEE ©

FEERAZHEE L RETREBES AT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&TT
In Hong Kong: HE
— medium-term leases — R EIFR A 12,472 13,346

As at 30 April 2018, the Group had pledged its leasehold land and buildings with a net carrying
amount of approximately HK$12,472,000 (2017: approximately HK$13,346,000) to secure the

Group’s bank borrowings.

RZT—NFNA=1+A8 AEECEFRKREFEL12,472,000
BIL(ZZ—+F : £13,346,000/8 0) 2 FA & -t MAEFLUES
REBZIRITEE-

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REYH
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
At fair value RAYE
Balance at the beginning of the year FH 4tk 193,939 187,959
Transferred from property, plant and equipment (note 14) BRAYME  BEREEE14) 1,670 -
Exchange adjustments BRI 647 (640)
Net increase in fair value recognised in profit or loss RIBEERZ AT EEINFE 35,817 6,620
Balance at the end of the year FIRZ &% 232,073 193,939
The analysis of carrying amounts of investment properties is as follows: WEMEZREEIWOT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
In Hong Kong aE
— medium-term leases — R EIFR A 206,500 170,300
Outside Hong Kong BAEEIN
— medium-term leases — R EFE Y 25,573 23,639
232,073 193,939

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted

for as investment properties.

The investment properties are leased to third parties and a related party under operating leases,

further details of which are disclosed in notes 32 and 33(a).

At 30 April 2018, the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate carrying value of
HK$112,300,000 (2017: HK$91,400,000) were pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the

Group (note 26).

ARBENEERERASEARPES RAREEREERE
2B EEREARTEERGE D BERBREDENR-

BEMERBCERERHHATE= A R—B@EAL #—
SBT3 2 33(a) i E -

—+E4F 91,400,000 ) IR EMEEBERETAEE
RTTRLE B (M sE26)



15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties

i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s investment properties measured
at the end of the reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a
fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and

significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations:

Level 2 valuations:

Level 3 valuations:

Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date

Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available

Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs

A EEARAT FHR2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BE-Z- /\SNA=1+HLEE

15. BEWME(E

REMEZ A TEE
i) AFEFR

THRAZIZASBEREM R 2 R FETINREPRRL
BUEARGE YN EABTBMBRELAEBRAT(E
EMREZ=RAVERE -BRVEAEDEZSHIE
SEMTHRERMAABE IBEERERNRETE

E—REE: EERE-ABABKREIRAERREE
ERAERZRIERN S 2 REHERE)
FPEZAFE

E_RMEE: ERF-ABARERAREEINE R
AESHARR) BYRERERATATEE
BABB 22 A TE - TAIBEH AR
REMGEIRZ BARE

E-REE: ERERATABEGARBIEZATE

As at 30 April 2018
R-ZE-N\FWNAE=+H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
E— E-R B=R AEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Commercial properties in Hong Kong REBZEEYE - - 104,500 104,500
Commercial properties in the PRC RPE 2 EEME - - 8,889 8,889
Residential properties in Hong Kong REBZEETHE - - 102,000 102,000
Residential properties in Macau PR 2 EEWE - - 16,684 16,684
- - 232,073 232,073
As at 30 April 2017

R-ZT—tFMNA=+H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value
F— F_ E=M NFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHET FAT
Commercial properties in Hong Kong REBZEEY - - 93,400 93,400
Commercial properties in the PRC KRB EEME - - 8,539 8,539
Residential properties in Hong Kong REBZEEME - - 76,900 76,900
Residential properties in Macau RIRFIZEEYHE - - 15,100 15,100
- - 193,939 193,939
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BE-Z-

NEMAB=+RILEE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

i)

i)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year ended 30 April 2018, there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfer into or out of Level 3 (2017: Nil). The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in which they

occur.

All investment properties of the Group were revalued as at 30 April 2018. The valuations
were carried out by an independent firm of surveyors, APAC Appraisal and Consulting
Limited (2017: Asset Appraisal Limited), who have among their staff Fellows of the Hong
Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location and category of properties
being valued. The management of the Group has discussions with the surveyors on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed at each

interim and annual reporting date.

In estimating the fair value of the investment properties, the highest and best use of the

properties is their current use.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Valuation techniques

Unobservable inputs

TABRZBARE

15. REWH(E)

REMEZ A FPER(E)

i) RFEFERE)

REE-F—

TSR REE ANEHE
BZHRANBELEER 2 BEMPRERE

ZAFE-

AEEMEREMEN T —
ERBLASMTEAEETERERERAR(ZE—
FpEEETERRARIR)ET
EﬁiﬁiAﬁﬁiEZE%!%ﬁ%ﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁ&%%ﬁﬁ&iﬂ&ﬁ@iﬁ%%
RERTPHERFERS
$‘§@E.EEJ'E§E1 RIS R ERR

HEITHE KR

=R(ZZE

NFUA=+HIEFE F—REE-HH
B )oK
B AR5 2 85

NEOA=+BEHEHE- 4

B HETTAER

1‘5@%&‘%

REFHREDEZ ATER ZENEZ2ES RRER
HRBEM%E-

i) BEE=RL

Filst 2 AR

Range of Relationship of unobservable
unobservable inputs  input of fair value
FABRHAYE
ZEE FTUBREABEAFEZBR

fhE A
Investment properties in Hong Kong
REBZIEME
— Commercial properties Direct comparison
approach
7 ES HELEDE

— Residential properties Direct comparison

approach

HELBA

Investment property in the PRC

RHPBZREME

— Commercial property Direct comparison
approach

—EEME HELEE

Investment property in Macau

PRFIZIEME

— Residential property Direct comparison
approach

—(EEME BEELEE

Adjusted market price
(HK$/square feet)

AR TE
(B FHAR)

Adjusted market price
(HK$/square feet)

Rz mE
(BT FHR)

Adjusted market price
(RMB/square metre)

ERE 2 DA
(ARH/FHK)

Adjusted market price
(HK$/square feet)

w2 E
(87T FHR)

HK$8,805-HK$34,271
(2017:HK$8,050 —

The higher the adjusted market price, the

higher the fair value

HK$35,777)
8,805/87C-34,2718 7 KHRAEzMEMRNAFELS
(ZF—t%:

8,050 7T-35,77787T)

HK$18,243-HK$33,241
(2017:HK$7,658 —

The higher the adjusted market price, the

higher the fair value

HK$27,247)
18,243/ 70-33,2418 7 LRABZTEBRSATERS
(ZZ—+%F:

7,658/ 7T-27,24787T)

RMB30,329  The higher the adjusted market price, the
(2017:RMB29,000 — higher the fair value
RMB35,000)
ARM303297T KRHEZTELSURATELS
—E—tE
AR #29,0007T-
AER#350007T)
HK$7,427  The higher the adjusted market price, the
(2017:HK$6,120 — higher the fair value
HK$6,645)
74278 EFEBZTEBSRATELS
(Z2—+F:

6,12078 76,6458 7T )

CHEREARE

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC is
determined using direct comparison approach by reference to recent sales price of
comparable properties on a price per square feet/per square metre basis, adjusted for a
premium or discount specific to the quality of the Group’s properties compared to recent
sales on the comparable transactions. The higher the adjusted market price, the higher the
fair value and a favourable adjustment on the timing of comparable transactions will result
in a higher fair value measurement.

INES RFIRFEREMEZ A FEDERERLLR
EEE  HESEARLEMERET IR /BT KER
RAEGE ZANEE B ARERTESE 2N EHER
(L AEEXF LM EH AR - Mg AR ZHE
BaABATERS MG HERR S 2 BHEHERE
B OEEYFERSZATERS



15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement of investment properties (Continued)

i) Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

. REMFR(E)
BEMEZ ATVENEE)

A EEARAT FHR2018
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BE-Z—- N\FEA=+HLEE

i) BEE=RATFEAEZEHE)

Commercial C cial Residential Residential
properties property properties property
in in in in
Hong Kong the PRC Hong Kong Macau Total
REBZ ReEZ REE M
[GES/ES [GES/ES ZIEEWE ZEEYE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET FET FERT FET
At 1 May 2016 RZZE—R"FRA—H 91,200 9,639 72,620 14,500 187,959
Exchange adjustments E R AR - (640) - - (640)
Fair value change NFEZS 2,200 (460) 4,280 600 6,620
At 30 April 2017 and 1 May 2017 RZZE—tEFMNA=1+AEK
—E—+FHHA—H 93,400 8,539 76,900 15,100 193,939
Transferred from property, plant and BEOYE BB NERE
equipment (note14) (BtsE14) 1,670 - - - 1,670
Exchange adjustments JEH AR - 798 - (151) 647
Fair value change NFEEE 9,430 (448) 25,100 1,735 35,817
At 30 April 2018 R-ZZ-N\FMA=1+H 104,500 8,889 102,000 16,684 232,073

Fair value adjustments of investment properties is recognised in the line item “change in

fair value of investment properties” on the face of consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income. All the gains/(losses) recognised in profit or loss for the
year arise from the investment properties held at the end of the reporting period.

REMEZAFEEFAENGEBRERABEEKERT
NTREMEZ XRFELY ] —FIR - RBEARFAZ
REMERFREEZ AN (BB EERDER -

16. GOODWILL 16. BE
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F T —+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT
Cost 2%

At the beginning and at the end of the year RENRFE 11,383 11,383

Accumulated impairment losses REREERR
At the beginning and at the end of the year REVRFR 11,383 11,383
Net carrying value REFE - -

Goodwill, being the expected future profitability, arising from the acquisition of pawn loans

business.

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing purposes to the cash-generating units of

financial services business (“financial services CGU”).

Before recognition of impairment losses, the carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the

BB E EREREL TR ARRBNEES

BECAREANRENIEEERMBEB 2RASELEML

(TERMREREELERM])-

RERREBRZ HEZEEEC I EEERRBRESESE

financial services CGU as follows: BT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Goodwill GRS 11,383 11,383

The carrying amount of goodwill had been fully impaired during the year ended 30 April 2014

due to the uncertain market conditions.

mRTRTHN BEZEESERBE-2—NFNA=1A

IHFEEBZURE
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17. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. RBENE BERRBITz2EE

2018 2017
e e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance at the beginning and at the end of the year FURFRZ &5 367 367
18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 18. AIHHERE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FATT

Unlisted investments: FETRE :
Club memberships, at cost (note (i)) AL R (MTEEG) 1,532 1,532
Unlisted equity investments, at cost (note(i) and note (ii)) SEETREFIEE - 1A (P () R B (i) 56,397 56,397
57,929 57,929
Less: Impairment loss recognised R BERRERE (9,430) (9,430)
48,499 48,499

Notes:

i) As at 30 April 2018, the Group’s available-for-sale investments with an aggregate net carrying amount of
approximately HK$48,499,000 (2017: approximately HK$48,499,000) were stated at cost less impairment
because they did not have a quoted market price in an active market and the range of reasonable fair value
estimates was so significant that the Directors are of the opinion that their fair value cannot be measured

reliably.

i) Analysis of the Group’s unlisted equity investments:

B

) RZTE-NFMUA=+AH  BIREFELA48,499,0008 (=T —+

F 1 #748,499,000 7T ) 2 AN Sk B A H 1 E TR AR EARR -
HEWEPNERNISHRE  BEBEATF AR 2 BERA  §E
SR SRt B RS 2 ATE

i) AKEZEETEFREZ DM

2018 —B-N\¥
Impairment Carrying
Cost losses amount
2% RERE IREE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FRET FHET
Honest Pro (Holdings) Limited (“Honest Pro”) 920 - 920
Newport Sterling Investments Limited (‘“Newport”) 9,430 (9,430) -
Claman Global Limited (“Claman”) 38,293 - 38,293
Partners K&K Limited (“PKKL”) 7,754 - 7,754
56,397 (9,430) 46,967

2017 —T—+F
Impairment Carrying
Cost losses amount
2% RIERE SRE(E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET
Honest Pro 920 - 920
Newport 9,430 (9,430) -
Claman * 38,293 - 38,293
PKKL 7,754 - 7,754
56,397 (9,430) 46,967
*  This accounting treatment represents the mark-to-market value of 23,349,436 shares (the o RERTRIEIE23,349,436 R (AR R A A=ZT—R"FALA=Z+
“Consideration Shares” referred to in the Company’s announcement dated of 26 September 2016) at BER SR [ RBRMD )R TEBRKTE 1.64BTLRTENT S

the closing price of HK$1.64 per share on the date of issuance. BE-



18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)

Notes: (Continued):

i

Analysis of the Group’s unlisted equity investments: (Continued):

a)

Honest Pro is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. The Group had 20% equity
interest in ordinary share capital in Honest Pro. The Group does not participate in policy-making
processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or other distributions of Honest
Pro. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group does not exercise significant influence over the
financial and operating policies of Honest Pro. The investment is therefore accounted for under HKAS
39 as “Available-for-sale Financial Assets”.

Newport is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. The Group had 19.09% equity
interest in ordinary share capital in Newport, which was fully impaired in the financial year of 2014.

Claman is a company incorporated in the BVI with limited liability. Claman and its subsidiary are
primarily engaged in the financial technology industry including in relation to crowdfunding and
technologies and services that seek to increase the efficiency of online financial transactions. On 26
September 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Vongroup Investment Holdings Limited
(“VIHL"), entered into a subscription agreement with Claman, pursuant to which VIHL conditionally
agreed to subscribe for and Claman conditionally agreed to issue and allot 29% of the issued share
capital of Claman (approximately 22.48% of the enlarged issued share capital of Claman) at the
consideration of HK$29,000,000, which was satisfied by allotting and issuing 23,349,436 shares of
the Company at the issue price of HK$1.242 per share (note 28 (i)). On 7 October 2016, the Company
issued 23,349,436 shares to Claman. Based on the closing price of HK$1.64 per share on the date of
issuance, the fair value of the Company’s shares issued amounted to approximately HK$38,293,000.
Further details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 September 2016. The Group
does not have the power to appoint a member of the board of directors or equivalent governing
body of Claman. The Directors are of the opinion that the Group does not have significant influence
and the power to participate in Claman’s financial and operating policy decisions. The investment is
therefore accounted for under HKAS 39 as “Available-for-sale Financial Assets”.

As stated in the subscription agreement, if the audited consolidated net profit of Claman for the
next full financial year is less than HK$10,000,000, there will be an adjustment to the consideration,
pursuant to which Claman shall pay to the Company an amount equal to the Company’s pro rata
share of such shortfall. Taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances, including the
business prospects of Claman and the growth prospects of the fintech and crowdfunding industries in
which it operates, that such profit will be met. The Directors are of the opinion that the assessment
of fair value of contingent consideration is Nil.

PKKL is a company incorporated in the Republic of Korea with limited liability to pursue investment
and institutional fund management related business. During the year ended 30 April 2017, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company made a convertible loan HK$7,754,000 (equivalent to
US$1,000,000) to PKKL. Assuming that as at 30 April 2017, the convertible loan is fully converted, the
Group would hold approximately 19.9% of PKKL's shares. The accounting treatment of the convertible
loan is an equity instruments. As PKKL has no contractual obligation either to deliver cash or another
financial asset, other than the coupon interest thereon (which is 1% of the principal amount of the
convertible loan per annum), to the Group, or to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities
with the Group under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to PKKL. The Directors are of
the opinion that the Group had no power to exercise significant influence over the financial and
operating policies of PKKL. The investment is therefore accounted for under HKAS 39 as “Available-
for-sale Financial Assets”.

0n 29 July 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of the investment
in PKKL to an independent third party, at a consideration of US$1,000,000.

19. INVENTORIES/FORFEITED COLLATERAL HELD FOR SALE

a)

A EEARAT FHR2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BE-Z- /\SNA=1+HLEE

18. AIHHERE(HE)

W% < ()

ii

a)

AARFELETERRE 2O (#)

Honest Pro A5 588 5 22 B & 7 it A 32 2 B PR A 7] © A Sk M Honest Pro

AR AN R 5 G 20% A4 o AR E R A 28 BHonest Pros) JRAR B
SR EA DR 2 RESBERHIFT B2 - BHERA - K%K E HHonest
ProZ MG R B BRI EBAPL S  HIRARBEE B G ERE39
SARBIAIHEENHEE -

Newport 4 74 % & Bz 22 B & sk A S 2 B IR A 7] o A E A Newport 2
LA AR R 519.00% A - B =T — PU4F B 4R AR ORE ©

Claman B EE R Z B & A 2 2 B R AR e Claman & E & A
RIEFENESANEE DEFESERSRESB LB IN
EHRMERE - R-T—XRNFALAZ+ B ARAZ2EMEA
FlVongroup Investment Holdings Limited ([ VIHL]) £2Claman&] 32 — 17 52
e - BRUL - VIHLA 1514 R B 3R 8 M Claman s 1§ 1 A 8 817 R A &
Claman929% 2, 347 AR A (Claman#722.48% ) &8 i K B &1 TIRA) - (R (B
#329,000,00078 7T + i 38 1R 3 17 (8 & I%1.242)8 T AC B K 3 1723,349,436
B AR A RIBRAD T A (M aE28() e R=F—AFE+ A+ B ARAEA
Claman¥1723,349,436[% 8% 15 - 20 817 B EARY U (B B k1 6438 TT AT
& ARAFEITI 8D T E 438,293,000 7T  # — FRHERNA
ARAYPAZT-NFNLAZ+NAZAHR - REBEEEMECaman
NEEGYRSERMBELEIRE - E2RA  AEEY amanit EE
AFE B ES B aman B 15 RS BEFORTE 2N - BURERE
EAEGENEISRARA (AT B EE]-

GRERAE R T - A0Clamanid TN — A T B B IR F [ 0 IS B ARG A 4 T
1E#10,000,00078 7T + (LM 1EL FHEE + itk - CamanZBRIA DRI L5
AR AL Z R BRI HIA R TIE - 5 BEBREERIER - 04F
CamanfEBATR R EGEEFEN SRR RERETENERISR
ZRAGEER - EERA TENIARBELATEARS -

PRKKLAR KB RBEGMA 2 ERRA B E REEE G
BEK -BE-T-+tHFHA=Z+HLFE ARA—H2EMNEAR
[BPKKLEZ ££7,754,0007 7T (8 & $1,000,0003 7T ) I AT EEHR B 5K - R % 7
T AS A A SR E USRS - AN E B PKKLE
& 15 #919.9% o AT B4R B SR & 5T R IE RARA T A - EIPKKLI & A K5
BRAAEEXNRCIAMYBEEE(ZEFNS(FFAEHRERAK
SEBHO1%) BR A1) 55 LA A BE AN FIHAPKKLAY {5 4 B2 AR 2 [ 2 0 B 76 4
SIS - ERRA AN NITEE PRKLE B RSB BUR
WEmBERFEN IR ERIBEE G ERNE39RARA A T &8
BEE ]

RZT—N\FLtAZ+NB REBETLE F 5% ZHE1,000,0003%
TR — &L E =T HERPKKLZ AR E

19. BE HERRKERR

Inventories in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise: a) SAMBRRERMIZEFEEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F I
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Inventories — food & beverage products FE-ZREMR - 1,947
Forfeited collateral held for sale (note) FEBL WA R () 768 699

Note: Forfeited collateral held for sale include gold and jewellery.

Mis  FERIRERRRRES RIKE-
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19. INVENTORIES/FORFEITED COLLATERAL HELD FOR SALE (cContinued)

b) The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense and included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income is

as follows:

19. BE HERRBERR(E)

b) BRRMIRFAGSESZRAMEZEKERAZFERE

ZAWMT

2018 2017
—E-N\F B
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRET FAET
Carrying amount of inventories consumed EREFEZEREEE 1,947 64
20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20. FEUWARRX

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Accounts receivable FEURBR X 16,924 4,050

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable based on the invoice date at the end of MNEREARIRBEEZEAHEY 2 ERER ZRBSITT ¢

the reporting periods:

2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within 30 days 30HA 10,042 -
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 972 -
61 to 90 days 61HE90H 602 -
91 to 180 days 91HZ=180H 1,062 -
Over 180 days HBiR180H 4,246 4,050
16,924 4,050

The Group generally allows an average credit period range from 30 to 120 days to its customers.
Accounts receivable that were neither past due nor impaired related to customers for whom
there was no default. Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired related to
customers that have good creditworthiness. Based on past experience, the management

considered no impairment is necessary as there has not been a significant change in credit

quality of these balances, which are still considered fully recoverable.

Ageing analysis of accounts receivable which are past due but not impaired

Accounts receivable disclosed above include amounts (see below for ageing analysis) which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group has not recognised an allowance
for doubtful debts because there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

AEEREAEEFEHZ FHEEHAN FI0RE120H - W&
B E 2 RUSR B ER VR EP AR - CRMEY

= o

25 BNRRAREEKE -

I8 B A Rl 1B P MR AR K 2 AR 9 AT

REZRUEEFEERRFZEFPAR RIBBELR 2
yHARLRE RERZEERZERERTREESR

EXFBE BRERREEN R ERRE BH 2 PR (R DT

ATX) ARBREZSFRZ EEERT EEAS
TE AT #E AR A% R WIS T 1o R B SR R AR B o AN SR B0 4

A ERER e

ERUEE R

I F AR



20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of accounts receivable of the Group which are past due but

A EEARAT FHR2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RENBRERME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

BE-Z—- N\FEA=+HLEE

20. EWERFR (&)

AT AASED B HE AR E R 2 Rk 5

DT o %R

not impaired. These related to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent SN EENRL VB IREE G-
history of default.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Neither past due nor impaired R ER T ARE 10,842 -
Within 30 days 30HA 1,662 -
31 to 60 days 31HZE60H 602 -
61 to 90 days 61HZE90H 972 -
91 to 180 days 91H ZE180H 212 -
Over 180 days BiE1808 2,634 4,050
16,924 4,050

Accounts receivable related to independent customers. Based on past experience, the Directors
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of the accounts
receivable as there has no significant change in credit quality and the balances are still

considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy including stringent credit evaluation. Receivables are

regularly reviewed and closely monitored to minimise any associated credit risk.

21. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO MONEY LENDING CUSTOMERS

F&“Hﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬁiﬁ%’igﬁﬁﬁﬁ BREBELR EFRA ANEER

A SR AT U] - K A R L BR R A L

Jé\xﬂ@iﬁ% S IJI?%EJLEZ%%@%%EE@?&W% o

AEEREHBZEER
EHARBE MR - W tﬂ%ﬁﬁs
REHIEK -

21. AREFEFERRERK

K OHEPRABRRZEEN G -AKE
R ERERZ EERR

Loans and advances to money lending customers

The loans bear interest rate ranging from 5.25% to 30% (2017: 3.60% to 50.4%) per annum and
are repayable according to the respective loan agreements which usually cover periods not more

than one year.

a) Maturity profile

RARER P ERRBR

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT T

12,851 15,664
ZEEFTMAEF RN F525%230%( —F — £ F 1 3.60%=

50.4%) WARE S B ERIBHER  E—RBR BB —F-

a) ZHER

2018 2017

—E-N\F —tF

Unsecured Secured Unsecured Secured

short- short- short- short-

term loans  term loans term loans term loans
receivable receivable Total receivable receivable Total

BUEEE BREER FENRIEIR UG R
EHER EHER st KHERE K REIER “@Et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FAET FET
Due within 1 month or on demand EE AR B e =y 169 439 608 35 341 376
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 11 A & {831& A A 2|5 340 - 340 435 - 435
Due after 3 months 3MEAEEH 11,903 - 11,903 14,853 - 14,853
12,412 439 12,851 15,323 341 15,664

As at 30 April 2018, no loans and advances to money lending customers were individually

determined to be impaired (2017: Nil).

REZZE-N\FMOA=+A HBEARETPER R 2R ERE
ERBE(ZE—HF - )
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21. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO MONEY LENDING CUSTOMERS (continued)

b)

Loans and advances to money lending customers that are not considered to be
impaired are as follows:

21. AREEFERRBRE)

b) RERABEZOREEFERRBRAOT :

2018 2017

—E-N\E Tt

Unsecured Secured Unsecured Secured

short- short- short- short-

term loans  term loans term loans term loans
receivable receivable Total receivable receivable Total

EREER REREER FENmIRAR G R
EHER EHER st FEHEE REIEN st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FAET FAET
Neither past due nor impaired I 38 HA SO A 12,412 45 12,457 15,323 14 15,337

Past due but not impaired BREEY ERE

Less than 1 month past due BERE A A - 309 309 - 46 46
1 to 3 months past due BHI1ZE3EA - 85 85 - - -
Over 3 months past due 1 BB A3 (E A - - - - 281 281
12,412 439 12,851 15,323 341 15,664

Loans and advances to money lending customers that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to recognised and creditworthy borrowers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

As at 30 April 2018, the remaining secured short-term loans receivable of approximately
HK$439,000 (2017: HK$341,000) were secured by collateral, mainly land and buildings, gold
and jewellery with aggregate value of approximately HK$774,000 (2017: approximately
HK$638,000) which individually has value over the respective remaining secured short-term
loan receivable.

22. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

ERRTEREZAREEFERRBRD S REEREZM

HBERA - WEA T IR A

NZT—N\FHA=+A - FepmE A EREHER49439,000%8
T(ZF—tF 341,008 ) WERQ(FERTHEEFT &
& MR ) (EIRIR - BEEL774,0008 70 ( ZZF —+H 4 £638,000
7BT) HERIEERRS AR GEKEIRFEHEEN

22, BE - ANRRREERIRR

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Prepayments TERTERIK 1,646 936
Rental and other deposits (note (i) & REMRS (B FG) 15,735 15,758
Rental receivables WS - 350
Interest receivables FEUF B 1,035 439
Other receivables (note (i) L FE URBR R (P () 24,900 24,149
Less: Impairment R ORME (2,720) (2,720)
Other receivables, net E iR RFE 22,180 21,429
40,596 38,912

Notes: P 3E

i)

Included in other receivables is an amount of approximately HK$20,653,000 (2017: approximately
HK$19,903,000) which represents the right arising from termination of the available-for-sale investment
in relation to Tian Da. The debtor has agreed to transfer the title and ownership of a property located in
the PRC, which has an estimated market value of approximately HK$24,784,000 at 30 April 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$20,700,000) based on a professional valuation conducted by APAC Appraisal and
Consulting Limited (2017: Asset Appraisal Limited), to the Group for the settlement of the debt owing to the
Group. This debt is bearing interest at the rate of 5% per annum. In the opinion of the Directors, the debt
can be fully recoverable and no provision for impairment is considered necessary.

The impairment loss recognised was a provision for the long outstanding receivables for debtors and the
receivables were considered doubtful. The Group did not hold any collateral or other credit enhancement
over these balances.

Included in the balance of rental and other deposits are amounts of approximately HK$15,550,000 (2017:
approximately HK$15,550,000) as refundable good faith deposits paid for proposed investments for which
the due diligence are still in progress. The deposits will be refundable subject to the result of due diligence.

) BRAHE b E R AR 2 & 58 4920,653,0008 T — T —HF : 4
19,903,000 7T ) #E R 4% 1E B BAR K 2 AT i 65 98 3 if 22 A 2 M 7 - %
BACRBBLAREZ WE(TAEETERERERARMEZY
¥R T \FNA=+BETEEMGEZ MR TE£124,784,0008 7T

ZZ 5 ¢ 920,700,000 70) ) 2 TR R A EER T AEE - L

ERERAEE 2 B - WEBREF %S - EF AR

Yl - e 5R 2 AR R E R -

CEBE R

EHRZAEBRAREBANKEAEREEFAELNERE B
EWFREE BRI - AEEY RHZSERFBEEAERRIEMD

Bk

i) BRESRHEMIZE AR SEH15550,0008 (=T —L£F: 4

15,550,000 7T ) Ty shER ) IE 5 & 2%

& ZERERBRBETRIETERE -

BEZEHMBRAXNERBE




23.

24.

25.
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EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 23 BATFEUERIIEZRSRE
Trading securities EERS
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At fair value: RATHE -
Listed equity investments in Hong Kong BB LTHERRE 17,355 21,483
Note: BitEE -
The fair value of the listed securities are determined by reference to their quoted market closing bid prices THEEREZ AT EII N BERRBEEWUELZ IR ZWHTEA
available on the relevant stock exchanges at the end of the reporting period. BEEE -
As disclosed in note 4 and note 5 to the consolidated financial statements, during the year, the securities business WERE M REM T4 RASHTIRE 1 BHEBHFREFEETN
has recorded approximately HK$2,691,000 (2017: approximately HK$5,633,000) in segment revenue from a fairly FTHREHFRELTCEE D ERE£2,691,000788 (= 4 15,633,000
diversified portfolio of listed equity investments, held for trading purposes. Although there was an increase BT BEEEBMEEN BEATT2(a8%)RER_Z—/\FONA=+
in asset value, this was almost entirely (over 65%) due to mark-to-market unrealised gain of approximately BiEmEHENREIRKZE41,781,0008 T (REATEEMN)(ZT—L4F -
HK$1,781,000 (from increase in market values) as at 30 April 2018 (2017: unrealised gain of approximately KRB EIEH4,849,00075 70 ) EREN0%K B E B RS 5 #9482,0008 7T
HK$4,849,000), and only less than 20% was due to realised gain transactions of approximately HK$482,000 (2017: (ZZ—+LF : Wak4I519,00078 7T ) °
gain of approximately HK$519,000).
These transactions did not constitute notifiable transactions pursuant to Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules. ZERSGTERBRE FTRAE4ENETABRS -
CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24. RBERBITHES
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Cash and bank balances: e MIRTTE % ¢ 32,560 34,664
Time deposits with original maturities less than 3 months FEEIERLR3MEA 2 EBPHER 2,066 2,012
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial PG BIRARRGERERERZEASASSE
position and the consolidated statement of cash flows [EREg=! 34,626 36,676
The interest rates on the cash at bank and deposits with banks ranged from 0% to 3.5% (2017: 0% FHRRITZ RS RERIRO%E35%( ZF—HF : 0%E1.4%) 2
to 1.4%) per annum. FREFE
At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of the Group denominated RBEBRR NEBEUARB(TARYE DiHEMR 2 RIRITLHE
in Renminbi (‘RMB”) amounted to approximately HK$15,589,000 (2017: approximately # 4915,589,00078 JL( = Z — 4+ F : 4915,119,000/8 7T ) * E A 4
HK$15,119,000), of which approximately HK$12,259,000 (2017: approximately HK$11,846,000) 12,259,000/ 78 ( —Z —+H4F © #911,846,000/8 70) T A B i A4
are not freely convertible into other currencies. HihE# -
ACCRUALS AND DEPOSITS RECEIVED 25. EEFRERCWES
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Accruals et IR 1,564 1,420
Accrued staff benefits fEEtE &R 1,050 181
Rental and other deposits received e kEMES 1,537 749
VAT and other tax payables FERHEER R HMFIA 18 25
Other payables A RIE 143 511

4,312 2,886
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26. BANK BORROWINGS

Bank borrowings, secured

The carrying amount of the above bank borrowings are repayable:

RITIEE - AT

Within one year

Within a period of more than one year but less than two years
Within a period of more than two years but less than five years
Within a period of more than five years

The carrying amount of bank loans that are not repayable within one
year from the end of the reporting period but contains a repayment on

demand clause (shown under current liabilities)

Less: Amount due within one year shown under current liabilities

Amounts shown under non-current liabilities

—FR

BB —FEIRMEHREA
iLﬁﬁ@fE'/ TFEHEA

BB AFEEA

ERREHRE—FAEE
BRZBTEREAEGIARBEE)

B AIRRBEEZ —FRIINEE

FIRIERBEEZ EH

2018 2017
—EBE-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FA&TT
28,188 30,140

EMRITEEZRAEER A THEESR
2018 2017
—E-N\F I
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1,951 2,009
1,966 2,019
5,844 6,225
18,427 19,887
28,188 30,140

HEEAEREERER

(26,237) (28,131)
1,951 2,009
(1,951) (2,009)

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as stipulated in the respective loan agreements.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$13,356,000 as at 30 April 2018 (2017: approximately
HK$14,326,000) were secured by certain investment properties with fair values of HK$63,200,000
(2017: HK$46,500,000). The interest is charged at 0.7% per annum over 1-month HIBOR, and
capped at 2.5% per annum below prime rate for both years.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$4,187,000 as at 30 April 2018 (2017: approximately
HK$4,487,000) were secured by an investment property with fair values of HK$18,300,000 (2017:
HK$16,900,000). The interest is charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month HIBOR, and capped at
2.75% per annum below prime rate for both years.

Bank borrowings of approximately HK$5,515,000 as at 30 April 2018 (2017: approximately
HK$5,865,000) were secured by an investment property with fair values of HK$30,800,000 (2017:
HK$28,000,000). The interest is charged at 1.5% per annum over 3-month HIBOR, and capped at
2.5% per annum below prime rate for both years.

The balance of bank borrowing of approximately HK$5,130,000 as at 30 April 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$5,462,000) were secured by the Group’s leasehold land and buildings held
for own use carried at cost (note 14) with net carrying amount of approximately HK$12,472,000
(2017: approximately HK$13,346,000). The interest is charged at 1.25% per annum over 3-month
HIBOR, and capped at 2.75% per annum below prime rate for both years.

The bank borrowings of the Group as at 30 April 2018 and 2017 were also secured by the
corporate guarantee provided by the Company.

e ZEIMeBARBZERBAMITAZEERRER-

RZZT—N\FHA=+HZRITEE 413,356,000/ (=
—-£ 4 © %914,326,0007%5 7T ) LA A F 863,200,000/ 0 ( = F —+
F 1 46,500,000 7T ) 2 & TIREWMEIEER - MEFE 2 FI S5
Z—EABBRITAEREM7E 2 FFRIE - MEFE L
R AREZFIER2.5E

RZE—\FHA=1+RHZRITEEL4,187,0008 (=T —+
¢ #94,487,0007 7T ) LA 22 *F1E18,300,000/8 7L =T — L F ¢
16,900,00075 70 ) Z B W) MEEAF - MIEFE 2 Fl 8% =@ A
EARITRAEFREM2BE 2 FRRRER  MEFELRARE
BRI EF2.75E

R \FHNA=1+RHZRITEELS55150008 (=T —+
F ¢ 495,865,000 7T ) LA 2 *F1E30,800,00078 7L =T — £ F ¢
28,000,000/ 70 ) Z % & W EAEIR I - MEFE 2 5| 8191 =18 A
EBRITREFRBIMNMSEZFFRERIRE - MFEFE LR ARE
BHIER2.5F ©

RZT—NFMUA=+HEFELH A5130,0008 (=T —+
F ¢ 495,462,000 70) 2 RITEEER T AR K BRI EELD
12,472,000/ 7L ( = Z —£4F 1 4913,346,0008 70 ) Z AR A B
EB A2 S i RIEFERE (HaE14) MAFE 2 E5K
—AABRBRITRAERE M 25E 2 FFRUE - MEFE LR
REBEREF2.75E

RIE-N\FRZIZ—LFHA=TH FEBEZRTEETN
ARFRBZ DEERIEER



27. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLODATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

a)

b)

q
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27. REMBRRREH Z BB

Current tax in the consolidated statement of financial position a) MEMBRRERZIZHABE
2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
At the beginning of the year REL] 829 829
Provision for the year NEERE
— PRCEIT (note 9(a)) — B EATET (FTFE9()) 1 8
Tax paid BARE
~ PRCEIT — R EMED (1) (8)
At the end of the year RER 829 829
Deferred tax liabilities recognised: b)) CERELEHBEMSE :
Fair value
change in
investment
properties
REWE
AEEEE
HK$'000
FATT
At 1 May 2016 WZE—REHR 539
Credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 9(a)) AR EER (Wu}ﬁ( ) 72
At 30 April 2017 and 1 May 2017 RZZE—tFMNA=+HEER=Z—tFRA—H 611
Credited to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 9(a)) sFAGRAEZER (M5E9)) 190
At 30 April 2018 R-ZB-NFMA=+H 801

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax losses of approximately
HK$132,358,000 (2017: approximately HK$129,222,000) available for offset against future
profits, No deferred tax asset has been recognised due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The unused tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Withholding tax

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to the profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$1,309,000 (2017: approximately HK$1,309,000) as the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

9

RS EAR - ANEE A KRB A IER 18 49132,358,0007%5 7T
(ZZ—+4F : £9129,222,0007 ) o] BRI R IOEF] © B
A FBE AR KB R M B R IEEEDHER - R F)
FRIE R R A IR B At e o

B

RIBEPEMCEMSRE 8-S N\F-A—8 FEKH
BARIGATREUE TSR S AHMTBINH - AR AEE
AR BT R R B  BEREERNT R ERETE
BB - B kR BT A RIS I B 2 B 5 X
1,309,000/ ( = ZF—H 4 © £91,309,00078 7T ) AR & BT 15 3
RAELEER AR -
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. BA&
2018 2017
—B-N\& —E—ts
Number of shares HK$’000  Number of shares HK$'000
RBHE FER qnrgc] FET
Authorised:
At 1 May 2016, 30 April 2017
At 1 May 2017 and 30 April 2018(ordinary shares of
HK$0.04 each) —ET-NFWMA=TH
(tk@@ﬁm&mzi [:9) 5,000,000,000 200,000 5,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER
At 1 May 2017 and 2016 m:?ftﬁﬁ
—E-RFRhA—A8 192,189,833 7,688 168,840,397 6,754
Issue of shares (note i) BEITRAD (B 5E()) - - 23,349,436 934
At 30 April 2018 and 2017
192,189,833 7,688 192,189,833 7,688
Notes: P E

29.

i) On 7 October 2016, 23,349,436 shares of HK$0.04 each were issued at a price of HK$1.64 per share in
relation to the subscription of 22.48% of the enlarged issued share capital of Claman (note 18). Further
details are set out in the Company’s announcement dated 26 September 2016.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time
and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) effective from 30 September 2011
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to
the success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company’s
directors, including non-executive directors, employees of the Group, any other groups or classes
of suppliers, customers, subcontractors or agents of the Group and the Company’s shareholders
determined by the Directors as having contributed or who may contribute to the development
and growth of the Group. The Scheme unless otherwise cancelled or amended, remains in force
for 10 years from that effective date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently permitted to be granted under the
Scheme is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each eligible
participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholder’s approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by the independent nonexecutive
directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
official closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 21 days from the date of offer,
upon the payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. An option may be
exercised in accordance with the terms of the Scheme at any time during the period commencing
from the date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted and expiring on a date
to be notified by the Directors to each grantee, which shall not be more than 10 years from the
date on which the option is deemed to be granted and accepted. There is no minimum holding
period before an option may be exercised.

29.

) RZZ—XNE+A+LH " 23,349,4368 SR EE0.048 T 2 BRID TR
FClaman #)22.48%4% 1 K B 1T IR AN L G AR.6478 T 2 BR BT (M =
18)  E—FHBHNARTARA-T—ANEAA-TAAZAHA -

EEREAEAGREBRAREIRZBE  WEERARFBIRA
BLRERRHEBE R -MAEBREARARNBEEZERE
iz o

BREta

ARAR-F-——FNA=TRRRNBEREABI([5HE]) 5
ERSAEEEBERERZAERSEEFL R REE -5
B ABRBEEBEARRZER(REFNTES) F5E
BB AEEEFEAMARI AR 2 HIER  BE S HE
B UREFRAREEAAREHAKEXEBERREREAR
Blz ADBIRR - BRIFR A TSRS TRIFT B A £MA
P+ FRA—ERX -

IRIRAT &) AR W 8 R TT 68 2 B AR IR AT (R B P I
Z Bty ERAAER AR BEEARREEETRD Z210% o £ ER
ToEASRE FERAERDREER CBRES K2 ATET
P A7) PR A3 7R X R AR (AT B ) 2 B AT AR AR 2 1%  BROMR R
UL IR 882 f B B AR R K& IR L -

BRFEAES THRAHKAQAEFERE B S 2 EAHE
AT ZHERE NEERBARRZEBNIERITESIE - It
S AR+ ZEA BB T ARAREZRES B IEHITE
EREEAAHEALZBRE Y QEBBARQAETAE
Fﬁaé’*ﬁ%’io1%%@@(1&%)%&”??&@%%?‘*EZK/‘
Befn 2 & W B 5t # ) iRi85,000,0008 7T BEAEREAS
IR B -

ARATERLBREZZHE B — T - BAXNEER
BLzARNRE ZNARES BRERRR SR RER
REENH(REEAESREA) SRR R IR EERITE
HERARTEBRAEREREAR RIENE BT +F-
BB BB TE AT Y S R K HT B R
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 29. B RERTEI(E)
The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the Directors, but may not be less than BREZITFEERAESEE  ETMEERTIESE  ((RE
the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant AR EE A ARD TR T2 WHE ()RR FRDRERE
of the share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares for BROEREZ B AERS AEBRA 2 FHRME  Ki)A
the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the AR Z EE °

Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’ BRETEE TR EAZTEREXNRBERG LR ZEF R
meetings. No share options under the Scheme were granted and outstanding during the years HEZZ—)\BR-Z—+tFNA=-THLEFE HEERED
ended 30 April 2018 and 2017. RIBET BRI 8 R 1T

30. RESERVES 30.
Nature and purpose of reserves HELER AR
a)  Share premium a) R#E

The application of the share premium account is governed by the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in
share premium account are distributable to shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

b)  Capital redemption reserve b)

The capital redemption reserve represents the amount by which the Company’s issued
share capital has been diminished on the cancellation of the shares purchased. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the capital redemption reserve may be applied
by the Company in paying up its unissued shares to be allocated to shareholders of the
Company as fully-paid bonus shares.

¢) Statutory surplus reserve 1o}

According to the Company’s PRC subsidiaries’ articles of association, the PRC company is
required to transfer 10% of its net profit after tax, as determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting rules and regulations, to the statutory surplus reserve. When the balance of the
statutory surplus reserve reaches 50% of the PRC company’s registered capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The transfer to this reserve must be made before distribution of a
dividend to the shareholders.

Statutory surplus reserve can be used to make up previous years’ losses, if any, and may
be converted into capital in proportion to their existing shareholdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital.

d)  Exchange translation reserve d)

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(v).

e)  Property revaluation reserve e)

Property revaluation reserve relates the property reclassified from owner-occupied to
investment properties. For such reclassifications, the accumulative increase in fair value
at the date of reclassification in excess of any previous impairment losses is included in
the property revaluation reserve and will be transferred to retained earnings upon the
retirement or disposal of the relevant property.

B EEREAZHSHERREMRE RIERNSHS
RAVE BHEERZESTDRTFARTBRR  EARF
EEZREERRERSREAANERNEECREERD
DA 2 B

KA

BABOREIARASETRAREEHCBERMNT
B2 2 - RIEFEFEDRE  ARE R KA R
BRARIAARRARBRREDS B2 RETRG  (EREHMRRK
FRALAL

JETE BB HE

RBEARR 2 PENE AR BRERMAR FEQRMBE
AR R Bl & at A7 I R AR E 2 10% % B4R B A A2
BpEE - BAERARRBEERENPEARAEMELRZ
50%8 - FIRBRTELE - SRR BREZRBELAR
DIRILE TR Z ATHETT

EERBRFEET RERBATFREZBRNE) LAHRR
BRBLOIEEEBHRRERBRBEAR EBRE ZEHRT
BAIREMERZ25%

B
EXREREARBBMINEB M BREMELZMA
SN ZE o AR AR BRI R 2(v) T U At R BRI

WFEE G
MES[HHEBEMEPENIBERENEZNEER -5t
BREMOENE RENDAAHNATEZRHERRE

EABERERR R AMEEHRE  LHRAEY
EBESHERBEARDERN -

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES 3. METHEEZEEZHE

Bank

borrowings

RITHRE

HK$'000

FAT

At 1 May 2017 RZZE—tFHA—H 30,140

Bank interest paid BEAHRITHE (535)

Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEER (1,952)
Non-cash changes: FELEH -

Finance costs B IS AR 535

At 30 April 2018 R-Z-N\FMA=1+H 28,188
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32. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENT

The Group as lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties (note 15) under operating lease arrangements,
typically with leases negotiated for terms of two years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the lessee to pay security deposit.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total future minimum lease payments
receivable under non-cancellable operating leases with lessees falling due as follows:

32, REHERE
AEBEAHAA

AEERBEEEORELAEREDE(ME15) —REH A
R o AVER —RINBFABASNERIZE -

RBEHR AEERB TR BBELEEARTFIZH B U
RIRE WSRO FIRBHE -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FA&T

Within one year —FR 4,368 2,078
In the second to fifth years, inclusive MERAF(BIEEREMRSE) 4,511 478
8,879 2,556

33. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

a) In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions and balances with its related parties during the year:

33. EREEALRS

) BRZEGEMBRREMBTARENTZ RESN X
EERAFEREREATETUTEARS RS :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TETT

Professional and corporate secretarial service fees (note (i)) BERNBMERSER (M) 570 2,034

Rental income (note (ii)) TS WA (HEEGi) (491) (486)

Notes: PH%E -

i) The professional and corporate secretarial service fees were charged for services rendered by i) BEERATINERKCEANGRESTER A 2T ST
corporate secretarial firms which are controlled by a close relative of a Director, Mr Vong Tat leong /NG| i"TFﬁ}z{%ﬁEﬁﬁ'ﬁ}Zﬁ HEX OB LETHRAZ
David. The transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing Rules. BAER 5 o

i) The rental income was received from a company, which is controlled by a close relative of a Director, i) MEBAKREEFHESLEZOBREHZAR - ZEXHE
Mr Vong Tat leong David. The transactions constituted connected transactions under the Listing R iR 2 BER S
Rules.

b) Compensation of key management personnel h) FEEEASCHE

The emoluments of Directors and other key management personnel during the year are as FREZREMFEZEBEABZMENT ¢

follows:

2018 2017

2N Tt

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Short term employee benefits EHEEEREF 2,550 4,950




34. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS

a)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies which are described in note
2, management has made certain key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as discussed below.

i) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles. Management
will increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

ii)  Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset,
which requires significant judgment relating to the level of revenue and the amount
of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable amount, including
estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
revenue and operating costs. Changes in these estimates could have a significant
impact on the carrying value of the assets and could result in additional impairment
charge or reversal of impairment in future periods.

i) Estimated fair value of investment properties

The investment properties were revalued at the end of the reporting period by
reference to comparable market transactions by independent qualified valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. In making the judgment, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active market for similar properties
and uses assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the end
of each reporting period.
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34. EREFHETT RHER

a)

THR AR 2 EERIR
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1)

i)
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AEEEREETEME BFERRB 2B AERE
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AR FH EREERESTERR KD RER
B 2 SR 308 e o 3 % I B O

BEARESEAEATERHEKAREHEER
EFhzReE ERFHEMAEER  DEfFRARRE
MERREARREE EAMR R RRIRET
Bz E¥RERZEERERREZHAMRE
0 75 B U KA T A B R (R 1 B R I - AR SR B A
RRARAENETKROSEFSEGE 2FRES
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34. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS (Continued)

a) Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

v)

V)

vi)

Impairment of accounts receivable, loans and advances to money lending
customers and other receivables

The Group maintains impairment allowance for doubtful accounts based upon an
evaluation of the recoverability of the accounts receivable, loans and advances to
money lending customers and other receivables, where applicable, at the end of each
reporting period. The estimates are based on the aging of the accounts receivable,
loans and advances to money lending customers and other receivables balances and
the historical write-off experience, net of recoveries. If the financial condition of the
debtors were to deteriorate, additional impairment allowance may be required.

Allowance for inventories

The management reviews its inventories at the end of the each reporting period and
makes allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer marketable or suitable for use in production. Management estimates the net
realisable value for such items based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete items.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgment on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions
and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax legislation. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and tax losses only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
the deferred tax assets can be utilised. As a result, management’s judgment is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management reassesses these
estimates at the end of each reporting period.

The current taxation for the year ended 30 April 2018 was income tax expense of
approximately HK$191,000 (2017: income tax expense of approximately HK$80,000).
The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and tax payable as at 30 April 2018
were approximately HK$801,000 (2017: approximately HK$611,000) and approximately
HK$829,000 (2017: approximately HK$829,000) respectively.

b) Critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies

i)

Available-for-sale investments

Available-for-sale investments are stated at cost less impairment. Judgment is required
when determining whether an impairment is existed. In making this judgment,
historical data and factors such as industry and sector performance and financial
information regarding the investee and certain specific conditions surrounding the
transactions giving rise to the investments are taken into account.

34. EREFHETT RHER ()

a) THBMFZEERRGE)

V) FENRTR - [ 5P B R 20 R E A e AR ARt 1

V)
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

a)

Financial risk factors

The Group has exposure to the credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk
and equity price risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

i) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual
obligation resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy
of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral,
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables and loans and advances to money
lending customers, in order to minimise risk, the management has a credit policy in
place and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis. With
respect to accounts receivable, other receivables and loans and advances to money
lending customers, credit evaluations of debtors’ financial position and condition are
performed on each and every major debtor periodically. These evaluations focus on
the debtors’ past history of making payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the debtor as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the debtor operates. The Group does not require
collateral in respect of accounts receivable and other receivables. In respect of loans
and advances to money lending customers, the Group held collateral, mainly land and
buildings, gold and jewellery, for securing the debts. Debts are usually due within 30-
90 days from the date of grant or as agreed in the respective agreement. In addition,
the management reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debts at the
end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.

In respect of accounts receivable, other receivables, loans and advances to money
lending customers, the Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor. The default risk of the industry and
country in which debtors operate also has an influence on credit risk. At the end
of the reporting period, other than the accounts receivable of approximately
HK$16,924,000 (2017: approximately HK$4,050,000), the refundable deposit of
approximately HK$15,550,000 (2017: approximately HK$15,550,000) (note 22), other
receivable of approximately HK$20,653,000 (2017: approximately HK$19,903,000)
(note 22) and the secured short-term loans receivable of approximately HK$439,000
(2017: approximately HK$341,000) (note 21), the Group has no other significant
concentrations of credit risk which individual balance does not exceed 10% of the total
other receivables, loans and advances to money lending customers at the end of the
reporting period.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

i) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for its own cash
management, including the short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demand, subject to board approval. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its
compliance with lending covenants to ensure that it maintains sufficient amount of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. The Group relies on bank
borrowings as a significant source of liquidity.
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35. MEREEREREE
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued) 35. BIEEMEERERBER(E)
a) Financial risk factors (Continued) a) HBEBREE(E)
i) Liquidity risk (Continued) i) REBELEE(E)
The following liquidity risk tables set out the remaining contractual maturities at the NTZzrRBEeRBRRABUAGHNAURAZELTEAR
end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual EEZAEENKEBERBRERRZBTAOBHR(E
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual FERE KR (0 AZ B A ) A& BiR 2 IR &
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the STEZABNR) MERASEAHERARZ&ETH
earliest date the Group can be required to pay: Hy

More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

—FAH BB—F BBmE BRREE
BRER BRMER BREFRA REng IREE A

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAET FHET FTAT FHET FTAT
2018 —B-N\E

Accruals FEETRUE 1,564 - - 1,564 1,564
Accrued staff benefits fEsHE TEF 1,050 - - 1,050 1,050
Other payables Hi e FRIE 143 - - 143 143
Bank Borrowings RITHEE 28,188 - - 28,188 28,188
30,945 - - 30,945 30,945

More than More than Total

Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years cash flow amount

—FRK HBiE—F HRIBME BRIARME
RER BRMFA BERAFA REME BRI E 4858
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHET TET FET

2017 —ET—+F

Accruals fEst A 1,420 - - 1,420 1,420
Accrued staff benefits FEstE TREF 181 - - 181 181
Other payables HbER A 511 - - 511 511
Bank Borrowings RITIEE 30,140 - - 30,140 30,140

32,252 - - 32,252 32,252




35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

i)

jii)
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35. IEBEEEERBEKE)

a) BEREBEREE)

Liquidity risk (Continued) i) REBELEE(E)
Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “within 1 M A RIR SR FUER Z IRTTEETE Il B H B S A
year or on demand” time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2018, the AT —FASRZR ] 2BHER - R=F— \FMA
aggregate carrying amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to approximately =+H ZERTEEZLEEEL A28,188,000% T
HK$28,188,000 (2017: approximately HK$30,140,000). Taking into account of the (ZZT—t 4 : 4930,140,00078 7T ) o &5 5T R ANEE 2 8175
Group’s financial position, the Directors do not believe that it is probable that the KR BERARIT A EITHERBEZ REBFER -
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The EERA ZERTEEHRBEERBHEMEUTEE
Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the ENHEEEREE AT REBEESREETHBHRE
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements, as follows. However, in ZER-BERAHESUERERERERZEHERK
accordance with Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements- 2o AZERTBEREDEARDARE -
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause, all such bank loans have been classified as current liabilities.
Maturity analysis — Term loans subject to a repayment on demand clause based on FHD —BIRERERRBEBEERBER 2 CHE
scheduled repayments. b
More than More than Total
Within 1 year but 2 years but contractual
1 year or less than less than More than undiscounted Carrying
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flow amount
—F R HiR—5F PR EEES EHRUR
RER ERWMEARA BREFR BBHE BeRE KREEBELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET FHET
30 April 2018 R-ZE-NFHWA=+H 2,488 2,487 7,455 19,104 31,534 28,188
30 April 2017 R-ZE—+FNA=1H 2,504 2,504 7,413 21,380 33,801 30,140

Interest rate risk

Except for certain interest-bearing bank deposits, loans and advances to money
lending customers and bank borrowings the Group has no significant interest-bearing
assets and liabilities. The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. Bank deposits and bank borrowings
issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The loans and
advances to money lending customers issued at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s bank borrowings have been disclosed in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to
interest risks.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate arising from the Group’s HK$ borrowings.

i) FYEE

BE T ERITHER  MBEEFERRBRRRITE
B ARETES R REEREE  AREZRA
REERERERMEBINT SN K 2 EE - RITHF
REREHFIRBH L RITEECAEERERE DR
BREEE - ZEEMNEEEERFSEHZERREK
EASEEHRSRENEEAR ARAKERTER
ZREBERERA M IRARMIFE261 5
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

iii) Interest rate risk (Continued)

i)

i)

35. IEBEEEERBEKE)

a) BEREBEREE)

i) FIE @ ()

Interest rate risk ) FIEEE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings at TRAVAEBEERREHRZFERHER
the end of the reporting period:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Effective Effective
interest interest
rates rates
BRFIE B F X
HK$’000 HK$'000
% FEx % FHET
Variable rate borrowings: BEFREE
Bank borrowings RITEE 1.1-2.5 28,188 11-22 30,140
At 30 April 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis RIZ— N\EMA=1+8 " fhsHiE RER RIE
points in interest rates would decrease/increase the Group’s profit/(loss) after R A001E E B G R A 38 A BB A0
tax and accumulated losses by approximately HK$235,000 (2017: approximately (R R 2R E 18492350008 T(—F—+
HK$252,000). ¢ #9252,0007 70 ) °
Sensitivity analysis i) BRI
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change LHHRES M IBREMNENREAREREY

in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had
been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 100 basis points increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the end of the next annual reporting period.

iv) Currency risk

The Group’s operations are mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Entities within the
Group are exposed to foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and

monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the

entity’s functional currency.

The Group currently does not have any related foreign exchange hedges, however the

management monitors its foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedges should
the need arise.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the end of the reporting
period to currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate.
The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily RMB and United States Dollars
(“US$”). The Company is not exposed to material currency risk at the end of the
reporting period.

T - AR K A 2 AT T A Y
RIS AR - 51008 % 2 8 A L 1 R
ERER A E T —AEREREBRAE T4
A28

iv) EXEEER

AEEEBTECREELTE REEBETZE
BERTRS 2 SNERR  REIFANERZIEEE
FHEZHERERSREREERAE

RS B3R B W A AR OMNE S B R B R
HAMNER K - W05 E BT BRI -

AZERERE

TRALAEENREHRZERERIELS
PONVEBECZERREERBEEREEZER
ke EELRER B ERBARBRET(E
T ARRRBEPRRL EAHERT KRR -

Exposure of foreign currencies Express in HK$000

SMEREBE (UL T B THIR)
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F

RMB us$ RMB Us$

AR EH AR ESH
Overall exposure arising from recognised assets DHEREENBEMEL Y

and liabilities: BERK
Cash and bank balances BE RRITHEH 15,589 3,161 15,119 3,455




35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

iv)  Currency risk (Continued)

v)

i)

Sensitvity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s profit/(loss)
after tax (and accumulated losses) in response to reasonably possible changes in
the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the end
of the reporting period.
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35. IEBEEEERBEKE)

a) BEREBEREE)

iv)  EHEE ()

RMB AREE

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the end of the annual reporting period and had
been applied to the Group’s exposure to currency risk for both derivative and
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s assessment of reasonably possible
changes in foreign exchange rate over the period until the end of the next annual
reporting period. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between HK$
and US$ would be materially unaffected by any changes in movement in value
US$ against other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented in the above
table represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group entities’ loss
after tax and equity measured in the respective functional currencies, translated
into HK$ at the exchange rate ruling at the end of the reporting period for
presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments of
trading securities classified as equity investments at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the Stock Exchange. Decisions to
buy or sell trading securities are based on daily monitoring of the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the stock market index and other industry
indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity needs.

i) BUREST
TRETRIBEHREEBAIEKRRR 25
MEERZABAEEE MIAEERBEERN,
(BRI REEFBR) BRZHHE
2018 2017

—E2-N\F e

Increase/ Decrease/

Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) on profit after (decrease) on loss after
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange  accumulated exchange accumulated
rate losses rate losses

BB EIRF BB ER

SSER ES 3 SN [ R SEX
ER (T  #m/GRd) A /CRE) R /(ghn)
HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

5% 651 5% 631

(5%) (651) (5%) (631)
BREES T IBRERIINEEEZRBERREREE
MmEEsT  WEANAEENZ B BFEEZITERE
PTEMB IR BEEAR  mATHE KMZE8 (5
EME)REFTE
IR BBIEEEENGIIMNEEETRBAE T —
EFEERERRAIEHR 2 EH G F - TR
BAETHETHIBEEXRERARE EHTR
ETAEMES 2 BEZERNEHFE - EFRIIR
ZAMBEREAEETEERZRBEEE R
EMREERRBEPRRAEIRCEXRAE
BB EZRIECBFAVE - —T—tF2H
Hr IRARE R BT »

V) RAEREER

AEERZATEFARES EREFREZEERE
HFMARREZBER -

AEEZ EFHEFRENBZA LT BERHERSR
EFRZREDERNEGAERERNESBREREEDS
BEREMTEERZRANRAKRAZRDESH
RiffEH
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

v)  Equity price risk (Continued)

At 30 April 2018, it is estimated that an increase/(decrease) of 5% (2017: 5%) in the
relevant stock market index (for listed investments), with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group’s profit/(loss) after tax (and
accumulated losses) as follows:

35.

HEEREEBEERBEE)
a) BEREBEREE)
v REESERE)

RZF-N\FUA=+H BREEETSER(GEL
WMRE) EFCTER) 5%( =T —H4F « 5%)MATHE A
BYTEE B AKEZBRBERRET(BR(KE
R EE M TRATEN R

2018
—E-N\E

2017
T —+tF

after tax and accumulated losses

Decrease/(increase) on loss after
tax and accumulated losses

Increase/(decrease) on profit

BRE#EANIREREE BREEEERZEER
g,/ CRd) /()
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Change in the relevant equity price risk variable: 8 EAR% (B & b & 2~ &)
Increase N 5% 725 5% 897
Decrease Ve (5%) (725) (5%) (897)
The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous change in the Group’s loss after PFREDWES  REREMSEHEHENREEHR

tax (and a cumulated losses) that would arise assuming that the changes in the stock
market index had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been applied
to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group
to equity price risk at the end of the reporting period. It is also assumed that the
fair values of the Group’s equity investments would change in accordance with the
historical correlation with the relevant stock market index, and that all other variables
remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

vi)  Fair values

i) Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as
follows:

(i)  the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices and ask prices respectively.

(i) the fair values of derivative instruments are calculated using quoted
prices. Where such prices are not available, a discounted cash flow analysis
is performed using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the
instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for
optional derivatives.

(ii) the fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table give information about how the fair values
of these financial assets are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)
and inputs used).

A WERARENAEREEMF AL R RESRR
BEREEEGRAERERZ VB TR HAREZ
BEREER(RZBEBER)BEERZARZE - TR
RAEHEEFRE 2 XN FESERBIEERETHIER
ZELAREMED MAAEGREERETE -
—EFEZ M IRAR R ELEAETT

vi) ~FE
) PBTAZAFE
M EEMIFEENRFERB T EEE

() AABREGRRGEHLFEERTSOME
EENRVMBRENAFEDHI2RBENE
BHSRITHERRITEERE -

(i) PTAETENAFEDRBRELTE - M
BRIER ARAIESEITERBRAERD
Yo R AREITIT R 2R B AT - HIEREDT
£ G AR HE R (B AR AL

(i) At BEERIBAGEN D FERBAN
RREREHSMAEWRNDREBEREHEE

REREHR AREMO M BEEEN R FEF
B-TREHEBMETVBEEATEZSR
CLERMGERMEAMBEARE ZER )



35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

a)

b)

q

Financial risk factors (Continued)

vi)  Fair values (Continued)

i) Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
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35. IEBEEEERBEKE)

a)

Fair value as at

MREREE(E)
vi) RFE(E)
) EEITAZAFEE)

Valuation

AFE technique and key
input
Fair value HERMR
2018 2017 hierarchy FE@MAHE
—ZE-N\F —T—+fF AFEER
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Financial assets BBEE
Equity investments at fair value BAFERABREZ 17,355 21,483 Level 1 Quoted bid price on
through profit or loss BHEE active market
F—F RNERTS
REAE

There are no transfers between Level 1,2 and 3 in both years.

REMEFE K —BR=FzEILEEE -

Capital risk management h) BXEBERE
The Group’s objective when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to KREBEBEER BN ARBREBBERLE N A
continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits AR RIR B R AR MERS A AREFRS TR ERESR
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of IRZEHE PR B AR AR S o
capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of REEAUBBARINFRRZBECHE BEEATR
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. Bl BT IR R M 15 o R B AN IR o
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio, which is calculated as total AEBEREGELRERERN  AELRDIRGAPERRD
borrowings divided by total equity as shown in the consolidated statement of financial ERZESRBER ARSI E - R \ER -
position. The gearing ratios as at 30 April 2018 and 2017 were as follows: —+FA=+HZEBELERDNT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER TR
Total borrowings- bank borrowings BiEE-HRITEE 28,188 30,140
Total equity BlEn 383,767 341,794
Gearing ratio afEkx 0.07 0.09
Estimation of fair values o AFEMLE

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair
values of the following financial instruments.

i) Securities

The fair value is based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period. The
quoted market price used for securities held by the Group is the closing bid price at the
end of the reporting period.

ii)  Bank borrowings

In respect of the Group’s borrowings, the carrying amounts were not materially
different from their fair values as at 30 April 2018 and 2017. The fair value is estimated
as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at current market interest rates
for similar financial instruments.

AT BB BAEE THIM B TARFEZERERRR

RFETERREHRRZ THREE - BRAREER
BREZZTSRETDIRRERRZBHEAM

i) RITIER

RAREZ Y EEAERR-E\ER-F—+
EMA=+B ATELEEAZR - ATERFRE
SRBZIE - LB T A BAT S FIR B
3o
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36. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities recognised at the end of the

36. BERB D M BEERABEMRE

AEERBENRER M HEERBERER 2 REES BN

reporting period are categorised as follows. I
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Financial Assets BBEE
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: BATFEFABSEZHHEE :
— Held for trading: —FEEERR
Equity investments at fair value through profit or loss BAFEFABEZERFEE 17,355 21,483
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE 48,499 48,499
Loans and receivables: BER R EYFE
— Accounts receivable — FEUREBR X 16,924 4,050
— Loans and advances to money lending customers —ARERFER LRI 12,851 15,664
— Rental receivables —EREE - 350
— Interest receivables — RS B 1,035 439
— Other receivables — H A FEURBR 3R 22,180 21,429
— Other refundable deposit —HirRERE 15,550 15,550
— Cash and bank balances — & RIRTTHEH 34,626 36,676
103,166 94,158
169,020 164,140
Financial Liabilities HRas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: R HEK AT E 2B AE -
— Accruals —FERTEE 1,564 1,420
— Accrued staff benefits —EEtE TER 1,050 181
— Other payables — H A PR FRIR 143 511
— Bank borrowings —RITIEE 28,188 30,140
30,945 32,252
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BE-Z- /\SNA=1+HLEE

37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 37. KRR ETEMB AR ZFHE

General information of principal subsidiaries

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries which affected the results, assets and liabilities at the
end of the reporting period are set out below.

Particulars of

TEMBELATZ-RER

PRRERREAEE L XE EERBBEYEZ I EWBERARZ
FIEHIT

Percentage of equity
attributable to

Place of issued and paid up
incorporation share capital/ the Company N Principal
/\ F] 4

Name and business registered capital ARARMGERERD activities
AR & ERITRBERE Direct Indirect

£18 E3730E S EMERER B Bz FEXK

VG Investment Assets Holdings Incorporated BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
KBRS —REEB1ETEERK BEER

Max Wide Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Securities

BB ERAT B 17T FHH

Vongroup Consumer Finance Corporation BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each 100 - Investment holding
KBRS —REEB1ETEERK BEER

Easy Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$100,000 100 - Financial services businesses
e 100,0007%5 7T D RRT

Golden Throne Holdings Limited BVI 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Technology & media and

REBRZEE —BREEIETEAR

related activities

B N 8 A S 4B S &)

Kamboat Chinese Cuisine Company Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$6,950,523 ordinary shares - 100 Food & beverage business
HEELES, LiE6950,523% T BREB
aE
tRIEBEREERET AL RIER]) PRC Registered/paid-up capital of - 100 Financial services businesses
RMB10,000,000 (note (i) and (iii))
a2 TSR AR AN A R #510,000,0007T SRR EY
CBEEG) R (i)
B EZMRINERAR( EAKRE]) PRC Registered/paid-up capital of - 100 Financial services businesses
HK$23,000,000 (notes (i) & (ii))
FE T B2 A7 23,000,000 7T SRR ES
(P () B (i)
Centrix Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
REBEBEEARLDA B BT bIES 3
Unitech Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
BHEBXBMRANF) B 18T MEER
Win Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
BLERAB RN R B 18T MEER
Champmark Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
BEHRAR B BT LIES 3
Allex Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business

£ 1787

[ESS
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (Continued) 37. RAREEMB AR ZFHE(E)
TEMBARZ-—RERE)

General information of principal subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage of equity
attributable to

Particulars of

Place of issued and paid up
incorporation share capital/ \tEe Company Principal
Name and business registered capital AREEAEREE D activities
RS R ERITRHBZRE Direct Indirect
£ E3300 JEMERER =R SE FEEK
BlackPod Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Technology & Media and
related activities
B BT BT R S 58 LA R ABRRE B
United Luck Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
B BR DA B 18T MEE
Maxfine Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Property business
REHER AR 5 27T MEE
New Image Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
HEISEABR AT B 18T MEE
Jet Victory Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
REBBERRA] B 18T MEE
Dynasty Kingdom Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Property business
5 18T MEE
House2buy Properties Limited BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Property business
BEIMEERRF] KBRS,/ —REEIETEBR MEE
BE
Vongroup Life Sciences Corporation BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Investment holding
EBRLES,/ —REEIETEBRK REER
B
Vongroup Financial Holdings Corporation BVI/Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of US$1 each - 100 Investment holding
REEZHES/ —REEI1ETLER REZER
BE

Notes:

i) deRJERE and FEEISE are limited liability companies established in the PRC. i)

i) Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the PRC Law.

i) b 5B is indirectly held by the Company through contractual arrangements by the registered iii)

owners of the subsidiary.

IERIBERREBIRE ANPRKIZERAF -

IR BAR M AN EE DR -

JERIEE T AR RIEBZIN B R R ZEMAEE AR LA OT RS
e
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BE-Z—- N\FEA=+HLEE

38. AARMBMR R RIAE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIERAE 218 E - -

Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SEXNE SN 152 152
Amounts due from subsidiaries J S NG e 334,328 334,410
Cash and bank balances B MIRITH 172 480
334,652 335,042
Current liabilities REBEE

Accruals and deposits received FERTRUE KB YIRS 531 118
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATRT R RIRIA 5,000 5,000
5,531 5,118
Net current assets REEEZFE 329,121 329,924
NET ASSETS EEFE 329,121 329,924

CAPITAL AND RESERVES RARFHE
Share capital ik 7,688 7,688
Reserves il 321,433 322,236
TOTAL EQUITY BrER 329,121 329,924

The Company’s financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 31 July 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

Vong Tat leong David
HES
Director

EF

ARRIZHBREABEFEN T N\FLA=ZT-—BHAER

REEGIATIESRERSE

Xu Siping
Director

EF
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NEMA=+THLEE
38. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 38. AATMBMRRERREE(E)
(Continued)
Movements in the Company’s reserves BATREZEE
Capital
Share redemption Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
B 1758 RAEEE B REFE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FH&T
At 1 May 2016 MZZE—RFERA—H 581,987 262 (296,110) 286,139
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FERNEELREHE BB - (1,262) (1,262)
Issue of shares BT 37,359 - - 37,359
At 30 April 2017 and 1 May 2017 RZZE—tFHWA=+AK
—+4RA—R 619,346 262 (297,372) 322,236
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year FRBBEREAEBEBRE - - (803) (803)
At 30 April 2018 R-Z—N\FWA=+H 619,346 262 (298,175) 321,433
The Company’s reserves as at 30 April 2018 available for distribution to the owners of the ARARRZE-N\ENA=1THREHESEEAEZEHER

Company as calculated under the provision of the Companies Law of Cayman Islands are
approximately HK$321,433,000 (2017: approximately HK$322,236,000).

39

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but

are not yet effective:
Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 9 (Amendments)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(IFRIC) Int 22

HK(IFRIC) Int 23

Amendments to HKAS 19
Amendments to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40
Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transaction’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with HKFRS 4 Insurance
Contract’

Financial Instruments’

Prepayment Features with Negative compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts With Customers'

Leases?
Insurance Contracts®
Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment?

Employee Benefits?
Long Term Interest in Associate and Joint Venture?

Transfer of Investment Property!
Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with earlier application permitted.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with earlier application permitted.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier application permitted.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined. Earlier adoption permitted.
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39. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets,
financial liabilities, general hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 which are relevant to the Group are:

» all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 are required to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at the
end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI"). All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair
value at subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss; and

* in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss
model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected credit
loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses at the end of each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have
occurred before credit losses are recognised.

Based on the Group’s financial instruments and risk management policies at 30 April 2018, the
directors anticipate the following potential impact on initial application of HKFRS 9:

Classification and measurement:

+ Listed and unlisted equity securities classified as available for-sale financial assets as
disclosed in note 23 and note 18 to the consolidated financial statements: these securities
qualified for designation as measured at FVTOCI under HKFRS 9, however, the Group plans
not to elect the option for designating these securities to be measured at FVTOCI and will
measure these securities at fair value with subsequent fair value gains or losses to be
recognised in profit or loss.

« Al other financial assets and financial liabilities will continue to be measured on the same
bases as are currently measured under HKAS 39.

Impairment

In general, the directors also anticipate that the application of the expected credit loss model
of HKFRS 9 will result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet incurred in relation
to the Group’s financial assets measured at amortised costs and other items that subject to the
impairment provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group. However, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will have material
impact to the opening retained earnings at 1 May 2018.

A EEARAT FHR2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBBMRMEE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018
BE-Z- /\SNA=1+HLEE

39. CEMEMARREE-2-NFEA=THILEFELNR

2R HAEARREZBEERE(E)
ERMBREEANLSRMBITA]
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EASERENTENBMERAFIRNTZRERMNT

.

FTEBREAMBRELNFIRBE 2 AN ERANEE
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39.

40.

41.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2018 (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer
of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

«  Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

+  Step4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
+ Step 5. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more
disclosures, however, the directors do not anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 will have
a material impact on the timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective reporting
period.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16, which upon the effective date will supersede HKAS 17 “Leases”, introduces a single
lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specially, under
HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Accordingly, a lessee should recongise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the
lease liability, and also classify cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and
an interest portion and present them in the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis. The measurement includes
non-cancellable lease payments and also includes payments to be made in optional periods if
the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease, or not to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment is significantly different from the lessee
accounting for lease that are classified as operating leases under the predecessor standard, HKAS
17.

As set out in Note 32, total operating lease commitment of the Group is respect of its office
premises as at 30 April 2018 was amounting to approximately HK$8,879,000. The directors of
the Company do not expect the adoption of HKFRS 16 as compared with the current accounting
policy would result in significant impact on the Group’s results but it is expected that certain
portion of these commitments will be required to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of use assets and lease liabilities. Other than that, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect until the Group performs a detailed review.

The Directors do not anticipate that the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have a
material effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 29 July 2018, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement to dispose of the
investment in PKKL to an independent third party, at a consideration of US$1,000,000.

APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
Directors on 31 July 2018.
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CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

A summary of the published consolidated results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years prepared on the basis as hereunder stated is set out below:

A EEARAT FHR2018
SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
B ERBE

AT EERE 2 ARBEBEREANRFE 2 THEGAEEAR
BERABZHMESIIMT :

Year ended 30 April
BZWA=1tHILEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—E-N\F B —E-RE —E—hE —T—NF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FiBx FAT FAT FHT FHT

Revenue & 23,541 12,767 11,967 13,488 6,774

Profit/(loss) before taxation WA ATR T, (E518) 38,967 (4,727) (19,477) (3,563) (24,944)

Income tax FriSHi (191) (80) 87 61 (1,691)
Profit/(loss) for the year from continuing NEEHBECEERER,

operations (&518) 38,776 (4,807) (19,390) (3,502) (26,635)
Profit/(loss) for the year from discontinued BRIFEEEBZAFE R

operation L (E58) - - 27,749 (3,161) (7,947)
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: NEZHF, (B51E) T 5&E

FE1E -
The owners of the Company RAFHEBA 38,776 (4,807) 8,359 (6,663) (34,582)
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES AR ERAE
As at 30 April
REA=+8

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

—E-N\F —ET—+F —E—XRF —ET—AF —T-F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FiBx FAT FAT FAT FHT

TOTAL ASSETS WEE 417,897 376,260 347,890 340,369 341,539

TOTAL LIABILITIES “LafE (34,130) (34,466) (37,934) (81,146) (75,651)

383,767 341,794 309,956 259,223 265,888
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LIST OF PROPERTIES
L/EZIES

Locations

b B

Investment properties

BREMH

10.

11.

12.

13.

14

Flat E, 9/F., Tower 1, StarCrest, 9 Star Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BB G 2499 2 HE1RIEEE

Flat H, 6/F., Tower 5, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
ERNEAME SEHH G EHFREHE

Flat B, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
ERNEAME SR /EERF7EI0EBE

Flat C, 10/F., Tower 7, Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
ERNEAME SHSREERR7TEI0ECE

Flat D, 43/F., Tower | and Car Parking Space No. 2-083, 2/F., The Harbourside, No. 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
BAENEMNLTHEREIFEBRR T 1E431EDE R F2-0835 E AL

Unit A, 25/F., Le Royal Arc, Avenida Sir Anders Ljungstedt, Macau
SRF e BT R RS BR S hE PI251 2 ARE

Flat A&B, 2/F., Queen’s Centre, 58-64 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
BRABITERRNERSS-4RBERET L2UEARBE

Residential car parking space 602 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong
BANEAWE R85 /8B F6iE6025% X EEAL

Residential car parking space 604 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

BB NERALME R 47858 EM F6I£6045 (L EE ML

Residential car parking space 637 on 6th Floor of Harbour Place, 8 Oi King Street, Hung Hom, Kowloon, Hong
Kong

BANBAWE =485 /8 B FiE6375 EEEA

Office E, 22/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BANEBEBEESFEREES2IEEE

J& T RA] [ A b #5 2335536065
Shop 4, Ground Floor, King Palace Plaza, No. 55 King Yip Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BRNEBIEWEESSH 2L ESH 4554

Car parking space No. P25 on 1/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEBEBEE3R RS 118 F 255K B L

Leasehold land and building held for own use carried at cost

MRAIIEFFERACHEEL B RETF

1.

Office A, 17/F., EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BEAENESEBEESFIERERES17IEAE

Existing use
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